南華大學管理學院企業管理學系管理科學碩士班

碩士論文

Master Program in Management Sciences Department of Business Administration College of Management Nanhua University Master Thesis

網路支付知覺有用、知覺易、態度、主觀規範、與知覺 風險對使用意願影響之研究一以柬埔寨為例 The Study of the Influence of Perceived-Usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use, Attitude, e-WOM, Subjective Norm and Perceived Risk on Behavioral Intention of E-payment--Evidence from Cambodia

> 陳頌*彥* Cheam Sokleat

指導教授:紀信光 博士 Advisor: Hsin-Kuang Chi, Ph.D.

中華民國 109 年 6 月

June 2020

南華大學

企業管理學系管理科學碩士班

碩士學位論文

網路支付知覺有用、知覺易、態度、主觀規範、與知覺風險對使用意 願影響之研究-以柬埔寨為例

The Study of the Influence of Perceived-Usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use, Attitude, e-WOM, Subjective Norm and Perceived Risk on Behavioral Intention of E-payment--Evidence from Cambodia

研究生:]東公頁為 Chean Sokleat

經考試合格特此證明

口試委員: 公门信关

指導教授: 如己信光 -素主任(所長):__ 口試日期:中華民國 108 年 12 月 25

日

Letter of Recommendation for ABT Masters

Cheam Sokleat, a student of NHU Master Program for Business Administration for 2 years, has completed all of the courses and theses required for graduation.

- 1. In terms of studies, Cheam Sokleat has acquired 36 credits, passed all of the obligatory subjects such as Strategic management, Business research method, Operation management, Management science etc. (Please refer to transcript.)
- 2. In terms of theses, Cheam Sokleat has completed the following:
 - i. Master thesis : The Study of the Influence of Perceived-Usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use, Attitude, e-WOM, Subjective Norm and Perceived Risk on Behavioral Intention of E-payment-Evidence from Cambodia
 - Conference: The Study of the Influence of Perceived-Usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use, Attitude on Behavioral Intention of E-payment-Evidence from Cambodia.

I believe that Cheam Sokleat has already received full formative education of NHU Master Program for Business Management and is qualified to apply for Master's Degree Examination. Therefore, I hereby recommend his/her preliminary paper, The Study of the Influence of Perceived-Usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use, Attitude, e-WOM, Subjective Norm and Perceived Risk on Behavioral Intention of E-payment-Evidence from Cambodia, for the oral defense.

Academic Advisor: 2012

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Firstly, I would love to express my deepest gratitude to my advisor Professor Hsin-Kuang Chi for his guidance, helping, kindness, patience, time and effort during the whole process of my thesis writing process.

Secondly, I would like to say thank you to my senior Mr. Phan Pijeijesda, Mr. Ngo Lyheang, Mr. Mueng Sopheak, and Mrs. Hum Sophea, Mrs. Hourt Sengheang who are always helping, encouraging and gave me a lot of good advice during my thesis writing process. And I would like to say thank you to all my friends, classmate, who are always make me feel warm and happy because of their friendly and kinds.

Thirdly, I would like to thank you to my family, especially I would love to say thank you to my mom who is always love, encouraging, support, and this dissertation would not have been possible without their support.

Finally, I would like to say thank you to all respondents who are spend their valuable time to answer my 54 questionnaires.

Cheam Sokleat 20th November, 2019

南華大學管理學院企業管理學系管理科學碩士班

108 學年度第2 學期碩士論文摘要

論文題目:網路支付知覺有用、知覺易、態度、主觀規範、與知覺風險 對使用意願影響之研究—以柬埔寨為例

研究生:陳頌彦 指導教師:紀信光 博士

論文摘要內容

這項研究旨在研究相關研究結構之間的相互關係,並強調於可能 促進或抑制消費者使用電子支付的意圖的障礙。本研究的主要目的是藉 由知覺有用性,知覺易用性和態度,電子口碑(eWOM)和計劃行為理 論的科技接受模型(TAM),找出使用電子支付的行為意圖。以主觀 規範和知覺風險為調節效果。由 350 名在柬埔寨從事私營和公共部門工 作的員工為研究樣本。研究發現,知覺的有用性,知覺的易用性對行為 意圖產生積極影響,而行為意圖具有中介效果。研究的結果可以為柬埔 寨用戶採用電子支付提供新的視角。

關鍵詞 : 知覺有用性、知覺用性、態度、電子口碑(eWOM)、主觀規 範、知覺風險、行為意圖 Title of Thesis: The Study of the Influence of Perceived-Usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use, Attitude, e-WOM, Subjective Norm and Perceived Risk on Behavioral Intention of E-payment-Evidence from Cambodia

Department: Master Program in Management Sciences, Department of Business Administration, Nanhua University

Graduate Date: June, 2020	Degree Conferred: M.B.A
Name of Student: Cheam Sokleat	Advisor: Hsin-Kuang Chi, Ph.D.

Abstract

This study aimed to examine the interrelationship among relevant research constructs and focus on the barriers that may promote or inhibit consumer's intention in using e-payment. The main point in this study is to find out behavioral intention in using e-payment by identifying Technology Adoption Model (TAM) with perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use, and attitude, eWOM, and Theory of Plan Behavior (TPB) with subjective norm and perceived risk as the moderation effect. The research sample formed by 350 who get employed both private and public sectors in Cambodia. The data was provided by a questionnaire which that organized base on the research questions. The finding showed that perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use has a positive influence on behavioral intention, which was mediated by attitude. This result of this research may provide a new perspective on how epayment being adopted on Cambodian users.

Keywords: Perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use, attitude, eWOM, subjective norm, perceived risk, behavioral intention

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Letter of Recommendation for ABT Masters	i
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	ii
論文摘要內容	iii
Abstract	iv
TABLE OF CONTENTS	v
LIST OF FIGURES	X
LIST OF TABLES	xi
CHAPTER ONE	1
INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 Research Background and Research Motivation	1
1.2 Research Objective	
1.3 The Procedure and Research Structure	5
CHAPTER TWO	
LITERATURE REVIEW	
2.1 Theoretical Background	
2.1.1 The Technology Acceptance Model (TAM)	
2.1.2 Theory of planned behavior (TPB)	9
2.2 Term and Definition	9
2.2.1 Perceived-Usefulness (PU)	9
2.2.2 Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU)	
2.2.3 Attitude (ATT)	
2.2.4 Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM)	
2.2.5 Subjective Norm (SN)	
2.2.6 Perceived Risk (PR)	
2.2.6.1 Financial Risk (FCR)	

2.2.6.2 Privacy Risk (PVR) 16
2.2.7 Behavioral Intention (BI) 17
2.3 Hypotheses Development
2.3.1 The Relationship between Perceived Usefulness and Behavioral
Intention
2.3.2 The Relationship between Perceived Usefulness and Attitude 18
2.3.3 The Relationship between Attitude and Behavioral Intention 19
2.3.4 The Mediator of Attitude on Perceived Usefulness and Behavioral
Intention
2.3.5 The Relationship between Perceived Ease of Use and Behavioral
Intention
2.3.6 The Relationship between Perceived Ease of Use and Attitude 21
2.3.7 The Mediator of Attitude on Perceived Ease of Use Behavioral
Intention
2.3.8 The Relationship between Attitude and eWOM
2.3.9 The Relationship between eWOM and Behavioral Intention 23
2.3.10 The Mediator of Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM) on Attitude
and Behavioral Intention
2.3.11 The Relationship between Subjective Norm and Behavioral
Intention
2.3.12 The Moderator of Subjective Norm on Attitude and Behavioral
Intention
2.3.13 The Relationship between Perceived Risk and Behavioral
Intention
2.3.14 The Moderator of Perceived Risk on Attitude and Behavioral
Intention
CHAPTER THREE

RESEARCH METHODOLOGY	
3.1 Research Model	
3.2 Sampling and Data Collection	
3.3 Research Instrument	
3.4 Translation	30
3.5 Construct Measurement	30
3.5.1 Perceived-Usefulness (PU)	30
3.5.2 Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU)	
3.5.3 Attitude (ATT)	
3.5.4 Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM)	
3.5.5 Subjective Norm (SN)	33
3.5.6 Perceived Risk (PR)	33
3.5.7 Behavioral Intention (BI)	
3.5.8 Demographics	35
3.6 Pilot Test	35
3.7 Data Analysis Procedure	
3.7.1 The Analysis of Descriptive Statistic	
3.7.2 The Analysis of Factor and Reliability	
3.7.3 The Sample of Independent T-test	
3.7.4 The Analysis of One-way ANOVA	
3.7.5 The Analysis of Regression	
CHAPTER FOUR	
DATA ANALYSIS AND RESULTS	
4.1 The Analysis of Descriptive	40
4.1.1 Characteristic of Respondents	40
4.1.2 Measurement results of relevant research variables	
4.2 Factor Analysis and Reliability	

4.2.1 Perceived-Usefulness (PU) 48
4.2.2 Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU)
4.2.3 Attitude (ATT)
4.2.4 Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM)
4.2.5 Subjective Norm (SN)
4.2.6 Financial Risk (FR)
4.2.7 Privacy Risk (PVR) 54
4.2.8 Behavioral Intention (BI)
4.3 Independent Sample T-test
4.4 One-way Analysis of Variance ANOVA57
4.4.1 Ages
4.4.2 Educational Level
4.4.3 Incomes Level
4.4.4 Frequencies of Using Internet
4.5 The Relationship Among the Constructs
4.5.1 The Relationship Among the Seven Constructs
4.5.2 The Mediation Effect of Attitude between Perceived Usefulness and
Behavioral Intention
4.5.3 The Mediation Effect of Attitude between Perceived Ease of Use and
Behavioral Intention
4.5.4 The Mediation Effect of Electronic Word of Mouth between Attitude
and Behavioral Intention74
4.5.5 The Moderation Effect of Subjective Norm on The Relationship
Between Attitude and Behavioral Intention77
4.5.6 The Moderation Effect of Perceived Risk on The Relationship
Between Attitude and Behavioral Intention
CHAPTER FIVE

CONCLUSIONS AND SUGGESTIONS	81
5.1 Research Conclusion	81
5.2 Research Discussion and Implication	86
5.3 Research Limitation and Future Research Suggestion	88
REFERENCES	
APPENDIX QUESTIONNAIRE	



LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1.1 Research Process
Figure 3.1 Research Model
Figure 4.1 Mediation Effect of Attitude on the relationship between
Perceived-Usefulness and Behavioral Intention
Figure 4.2 Mediation Effect of Attitude on the relationship between Perceived
Ease of Use and Behavioral Intention
Figure 4.3 Mediation Effect of eWOM on the relationship between Attitude
and Behavioral Intention76
Figure 4.4 The Moderation Effect of Subjective Norm on The Relationship
Between Attitude and Behavioral Intention
Figure 4.5 The Moderation Effect of Perceived Risk on The Relationship
Between Attitude and Behavioral Intention

LIST OF TABLES

Table 4.1 Characteristic of Respondent in This Research (n=350) 41
Table 4.2 Descriptive Analysis for questionnaire items 42
Table 4.3 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on Perceived
Usefulness
Table 4.4 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on Perceived
Ease of Use
Table 4.5 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on Attitude 51
Table 4.6 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on Electronic
word of mouth
Table 4.7 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on Subjective
Norm
Table 4.8 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on Financial
Risk
Table 4.9 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on Privacy
Risk
Table 4.10 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on
Behavioral Intention
Table 4.11 Result of Independent Sample T-test with Gender
Table 4.12 Results of One-way Analysis of Variance ANOVA of Age Groups
Table 4.13 Result of One-way Analysis of Variance ANOVA of Education
Level
Table 4.14 Result of One Way ANOVA of Incomes Level 63
Table 4.15 Result of One Way ANOVA of Frequencies of Using Internet 65
Table 4.16 Results of the Correlation of the Seven Constructs 66

Table 4.17 Mediation Test of Attitude between Perceived Usefulness and	
Behavioral Intention	67
Table 4.18 Regression Analysis of the Indirect Effect between Attitude and	
Behavioral Intention	70
Table 4.19 Mediation Test of Attitude between Perceived Ease of Use and	
Behavioral Intention	72
Table 4.20 Regression Analysis of the Indirect Effect between Attitude and	
Behavioral Intention	74
Table 4.21 Mediation Test of eWOM between Attitude and Behavioral	
Intention	75
Table 4.22 Regression Analysis of the Indirect Effect between eWOM and	
Behavioral Intention	77
Table 4.23 The Moderation Effect of Subjective Norm on The Relationship	
Between Attitude and Behavioral Intention	78
Table 4.24 The Moderation Effect of Perceived Risk on The Relationship	
Between Attitude and Behavioral Intention	80
Table 5.1 Result of the Tested Hypotheses	81

CHAPTER ONE INTRODUCTION

1.1 Research Background and Research Motivation

Due to the advancement of information technology, service automation becomes one of the most important trends in various kind of industries in Cambodia. E-payment is part of the major elements of e-commerce, which help to build up people effectiveness and smarten intention to use of ecommerce in the technology generation. E-payment is kind of system that has grown more and faster over the last period of ten years of internet shopping. In addition, the development of technology giving the world more advances, as such the rise of processing devices and e-payment systems. Furthermore, online payment will provide more secure transactions, increase, improve, and decrease the percentage of check and cash transactions as well. Now a day technology has applied in many several of fields, which attract the attention of researchers and scholars to do their researches that elated to technology. Because it brings many benefits as well as uses a critical role in business and contributing to society. This new trend causes the user to satisfy using e-payment because it is very convenient (For example: User can save the times, reduce transaction costs on transferring money, payment, shopping as well as manage their financial account). The electronic payment is kind of method for paying for goods and services or making money transactions from one side to other of over the counter without using cashes, and the processing of technology with a high speed that lead people intention to use it. Furthermore, the system of e-payment is created with the innovation and creatively that allowing consumers to use this software directly on their smart phone or computers. Because the lake of consumers using e-payment, so the current study trying to find out the factors that effect on people behavior to use e-payment shopping in Cambodia.

Regarding to extant studies, the technology has become an important topic for researchers to find out personal behavior in order to understand their purposes related to satisfaction, intention of consumer by apply several theories to identify the individual adoption behavior of consumer acceptance technology. According to technology adoption, TAM model was originally implied by Davis (1989) taking perceived ease of use and perceived usefulness as two factors to identify the attitude of user toward technology. Technology Acceptance Model (TAM) will combine with Theory of Planned Behavior (TPB) which is a part of Theory Reason Action (TRA) that initially implied by Ajzen and Fishbein, (1980) to examine on human behavior intention. Thus, this research will integrate TAM and TPB to find out the interrelationship between these theories in order to measures user behavioral intention, and item influences on e-payment adoption will become more strongly indicated the conception of consumers to adopt the modern technology system.

Moreover, some researches about e-commerce have indicated that some elements case a low rate of adopting e-payment system that can attacked many people intention to use such of convenience technology. During the time of growing the technology, the subjective norm and perceived risk have served as the promoting or inhibit factor for users to study over e-payment context. As the developer and payment providers trying to offer a reliable transactions by anti-fraud tools and provides more highly effective security of payment. In this study, subjective norm (SN) and perceived risk (PR) has been illustrated as an important factors that significantly effect on consumer behavioral intention to adopt a new technology system in e-payment context. Thus, perceived risk (PR) including financial risk (FR) and privacy risk (PVR) can interfere user willingness to perform system (Wang et al., 2012 & Yang et al., 2015). Subjective norm can be positive or negative affect on the user intention to use over e-payment (Wan, Shen & Choi, 2017). On the other hand, the electronic payment also removed the risks of security that happen with pick up money. Habitually, people have a tendency to get more information before they deciding to adopt e-payment, and they mainly perform their research influence by surrounded people or asking information from others to make a right decision. Electronic payment (e-payment) have changed to help e-commerce transactions between customer and seller (Junadi & Sfenrianto, 2015). Beneficially, electronic payment is kind of technology system is made to assist the adoption for online transactions of e-payments. So, after online shopping growing popularity, e-payment systems became an important for online shopper to make their shopping more easily than before.

Nowadays, many people have interested and try to have an experiences with this convenience technology. The latest technology invention of this trends is bring a new experience of lifestyle for both youth and middle age in Cambodia. Hence, the user more prefer to use browsing or surfing the internet everywhere and every time with their smartphone while others enjoy working by using their electronic devices to achieve their work implementation. Furthermore, the electronic payment system represent an important role of economy as this is the facilitate channel for the flow of financial resources. The electronic payment is factor that build up with a convenient system if it measured with traditional transaction process such as using a real cash or check. Therefore, online shopper able to pays for goods or services through internet and they don't need to waste their time in a line or waiting for their turn to transaction at any times anywhere, from any parts of the world. So they can access the funds they need to shop nor do they have to wait for a check to clear the bank. The number of people making cash payments is decreasing after online paying and shopping become broad. Base on the meaning mentioned above, the e-payment starts to be a hot topic and trend in Cambodia. In addition, there are many studies have focused on the interrelationship among perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use, attitude, electronic word of mouth (eWOM), subjective norm, perceived risk and behavioral intention to adopt e-payment. In doing so, this study is focused on how moderator effect on the relationship of some other variables has been a good way to conduct a research. Therefore, expanding the e-payment topic will be good for other researcher as the base article to discover the e-payment intention trend in Cambodia. Thus, current study will contribute to those user who want to use e-payment and consider which factors of TAM and TPB can motivate people to have a strong commitment to adopt e-payment.

1.2 Research Objective

Based on the above research background and research motivations, this study aims to collect data from universities student and those who employed in both private and public sectors in Cambodia. The seven objectives of this study are as follows:

(1) To discover the demographic characteristics such as: age, gender, education level, income level, the frequency of using the internet.

(2) To examine the relationship between the seven constructs: perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use, attitude, subjective norm, perceived risk and behavioral intention.

(3) To investigate the mediation effect of attitude and perceived usefulness in the relationship with behavioral intention. (4) To investigate the meditation effect of attitude and perceived ease of use in relationship with behavior intention.

(5) To explore the mediation effect of eWOM and attitude are in relationship with its behavioral intention.

(6) To discuss the moderation effect of subjective norm and eWOM in relationship with behavioral intention.

(7) To explain the moderation effect of perceived risk and attitude in relationship with behavioral intention.

1.3 The Procedure and Research Structure

Firstly, this research stated the research background, objective, motivation and procedure for conducting this study. Second, the literature review will be defined each theory like Technology Adoption Model (TAM) and Plan Behavior Theory (TPB). Beside those theories, it also defined the definition of other variables, as such perceived usefulness, and perceived ease of use, attitude, eWOM, subjective norm, perceived risk and behavioral intention. Thirdly, the study also discuss framework and hypotheses with interrelationships between each construct is going to test. Then, the questionnaire and data sample will design, focused on the employed people. After that, data analysis and test has conduct. Next, the discussion about these seven variables had been shown based on the result. Lastly, the conclusions and implication are going to illustrate according to the result of this thesis. The respondents are currently employed people who are working in Cambodia. The tools and methodologies used to analyze data and hypotheses will be in the following:

- Quantitative Survey
- Data Analysis SPSS 21

- The Analysis of Descriptive Statistic
- Factor analysis and Reliability
- The Sample of Independent T-test
- The Analysis of One-way ANOVA
- The Analysis of Simple Linear Regression
- The Analysis Multiple Regression
- The Analysis of Hierarchical Regression

The content of this research divided into five chapters, which are describing as below:

Chapter 1 stated the research background, research objective, procedure and construct. Chapter 2 stated the theoretical background, term & definition of each construct and component that will use in the study and research hypothesis. Chapter 3 showed the research framework, instrument, questionnaire item of each construct, translation procedure, and methodology that will apply to analyze the data. Chapter 4 showed the result of data that found out after running the data and it also using the table of the result with the explanation of each finding. Those tables were related to the table of the Factor analysis, Reliability test, ANOVA and Independent T-test and Partial linear square regression. Furthermore, it showed each interrelationship of each hypothesis. Chapter 5 would summary all the result into the context that the study want to find out. Then, it also did the discussion and implication for future research (See Figure 1.1).



Figure 1.1 Research Process.

Source: Original Study

CHAPTER TWO LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Theoretical Background

2.1.1 The Technology Acceptance Model (TAM)

Davis et al. (1989) implied that the Technology Acceptance Model (TAM) is changed from the Theory of Reasoned Action (TRA) and it used to indicate the consumer computer acceptance, which is the model that examined by the intention and the effect of attitude, perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use toward the intention to use a new system. A related study by Lee, Kozar, and Larsen (2003), TAM model is the model that most effectively and broadly applied to show the private adoption and use of information systems. Past study, TAM model has become as an influentially model by Yousafzai, Foxall, and Pallister (2007). An empirical research, have applied TAM as a powerful model for comprehension the individual using the new technology system in a several kinds of situations such as mobile application payment (Kim et al., 2010) banking technology (Adamson & Shine, 2003; Chau and Lai, 2003; Suh & Han, 2002), mobile internet (Alalwan et al., 2018), e-commerce (Bruner & Kumar, 2005), email (Huang, Lu, & Wong, 2003), online games (Hsu & Lu, 2004), studying online (Liu, Chen, Sun, Wible & Kuo, 2010). TAM model is the kind of model that determine the consumer's behavior to measure how they prefer and decide to adopt the new technology system. According to this model, perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use, and attitude are the most predictable variables to indicate the intention of using the new technology (Fathema, Shannon & Ross, 2015; Park & Kim, 2014; Rauniar, Rawski, Yang & Johnson, 2014; Fazil, Rupert & Ejaz, 2016). The current study will discuss the perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use and attitude to understand the

behavior of consumer's intention and determine how they perceived when they adopt the e-payment in this research.

2.1.2 Theory of planned behavior (TPB)

TPB (Theory of Plan Behavior) model is initially implied by Ajzen (1985). TPB is a part of the Theory of Reasoned Action (TRA) (Ajzen & Fishbein, 1980; Fishbein & Ajzen, 1975). Therefore, Fishbein & Ajzen (1975) suggested that Theory of Reasoned Action (TRA; the original to the TPB) to explain the process of internal cognitive processes can lead to action. According to Sussman and Gifford (2018) determined the Theory of Planned Behavior (TPB) that the very often cited explanation of human behavior. TPB is the kinds of model that the attitude, subjective norm, and perceived behavioral control are the predictable factors to determine the individual intention to perform the behavior. Many extant studies, TPB has applied to various kinds of theoretical background (Conner et al., 2002; Payne et al., 2005), food choice (Sparks et al., 1992), dietary behavior (Baker et al., 2003), customers' complaints of restaurants (Cheng et al., 2005), and choices for foodaway-from home (Bhuyan, 2010). Thus, this study takes on the attitude and subjective norm to predict the user behavioral intention to discover the epayment.

2.2 Term and Definition

2.2.1 Perceived-Usefulness (PU)

According to Davis (1989) determined perceived usefulness as the level of personal trust that using a specific system may increase work performance. In other words, perceived usefulness showed as an action of using a new system which is the user think that it would be useful to them, and the variable can be analyze with the measure of effective and faster work, and the productivity increase (Riskinanto, Kelana & Hilmawan, 2017). The previous research, indicated that people who believe the usefulness of using e-payment will help them to be easier to purchase the thing more quickly (Fathema, 2013).

Another researcher, define perceived usefulness as the level of personal thinking that using e-payment would be improve paying performance (Suki, 2011). It would connect to performance that user could achieve after they use the new technology. Previous studied by Burke (1997), and Peterson et al. (1997) they defined perceived usefulness as the principle necessary for technology adoption that is based on strong belief how new technology would make their lives better and simplify. According to Susanto and Aljoza (2015) found that perceived usefulness manage the beliefs of user that apply the new technology system may enhance work effectiveness, help to get raise, improve productivity, enhance work implementation. Kim, Mirusmonov, and Lee (2010) also found that perceived usefulness is indicated as the level of a personal perception about adopting new technology may boost assist them to obtain benefit in work performance. This research define perceived usefulness as the thinking of individual that it can enhance their productivity and effectiveness, the user can improve themselves in their daily life.

2.2.2 Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU)

Perceived ease of use explaned by Davis (1989) refers to the level of an individual perception about apply the specific system is openhanded of effort. Riskinanto, Kelana, and Hilmawan (2017) has been found perceived ease of use is an action that the consumer will realize a new technology is openhanded from mistake. Another research, define perceived ease of use is the widen user practice internet service is realized as easier or uncomplicated (Suki, 2011). In

the previous studies, perceived ease of use defined as the perception that apply a new system would be openhanded and easy (Tella & Olasina, 2014).

Xia et al. (2018); Rauniar et al. (2014); Lin et al. (2011) explained perceived ease of use will deliver the personal to free and easy of using a new technology. Another researcher, Kim et al. (2010) also defined perceived ease of use as the level of easy and connect with the practice of the system that people have confidence in adopting the system is openhanded of difficulty. (Legris et al., 2003; Venkatesh & Davis, 2000; Wang & Li, 2011) Many extended studies agree that a new system of technology is perceived as more convenient of using it. In this study has been point out perceived ease of use is the way of user think that using the new system technology is eased and convenient.

2.2.3 Attitude (ATT)

Attitude has been an important subject of the studies to determine or explain the differentiation behaviors of consumers (Casalo et al., 2011). Attitude has given the definition as the tangible habit that is showed by examine an important individual with some levels of like or dislike. According to the Theory of Plan Behavior (TPB) by Ajzen (1991) attitudes refer to as the level of an individual preferable or un-preferable examine or assessment of the behavior. Fathema et al. (2015) has pointed out attitude as the part that can bring out user fell to have interest to adopt a new specific system. Pervious researched by Kim et al. (2007) defined attitude as the part that can measures the felling of like or dislike of the personal using regular technology. According to Riskinanto et al. (2017) found that attitude is the perception of people in agreeing or rejecting the practice of a system. Moreover, it is also could be defined as the adoption of consumer to particular system. According to Suki

(2011) defined attitude as the level of personal feeling about satisfaction and dissatisfaction towards practicing internet services.

In the previous studied, have expressed that attitude is the variable that impact on user decision to do a particular system (Moon & Kin, 2001; Tzeng, 2011). Another researcher, said that the pleasure of people will deliver the positive effect on the personal attitude to the new things (Shin, 2004). Fishbein and Ajzen (1975) explained attitude is a personal's accept or reject feeling about using the target behavior. Yousafzai, Foxall and Pallister (2010) has determined attitude is formed from the perception of user carry with the practice of the new technology. So, this study defines attitude as the individual's thinking about like or dislike to have interested to use e-payment.

2.2.4 Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM)

Electronic Word of Mouth has evolved from Word-of-Mouth (WOM) because of the growth of information technology. The Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM) was original from Word of Mouth (WOM) that explained as a verbal form of interpersonal commercial connection. In the studied of Cheung et al. (2012) eWOM communication defined as any reliable or unreliable announcement is made by showing the capacity, existing in fact, or previous user concerning with a goods that is made accessible to broadly customer through the online. Base on Plummer (2007), eWOM) is thought as the most effectiveness kinds of goods guidance for make user conduct and ease of buying decisions. In addition, Cheng and Zhou (2010), Daugherty and Hoffman (2014) showed that before the right buying decision customer may get the detail of information about goods or services through the internet.

In other words, eWOM is explained about products or services provided by customers via networks (Thurau et al., 2004). Electronic word of mouth also determined as an unofficial communication conduct to other user of the proprietorship, operation, and attributes of specific goods and services of their supplier (Berger, 2014). At the personal level analysis, researchers suggest that eWOM as a process of individual impact, which is broadcasting in the middle of receivers and senders would be changed the recipient's thinking and purchasing decision (Kiecker & Cowles, 2001; Park & Lee, 2008; Cheung, Lee & Thadani, 2009). Thus, Cheung and Thadani, (2012) defined eWOM as new form of social communication content that related to both information-seeking user and information sharing user. This study define eWOM as the interaction between the groups of people contacts that happened on the internet network.

2.2.5 Subjective Norm (SN)

Based on Ajzen (1991); Ajzen and Fishbein (1980); Fishbein and Ajzen (1975) defined Subjective Norm as the understanding of community continuous physical force exerted on the individual to use or not use the conduct. In the previous research, they defined Subjective Norm that a duty of a position of beliefs called normative beliefs (Yousafzai, Foxall & Pallister, 2010). According to Manning and Mark (2009) explained subjective norm is the comprehended of society trend to connect with behavior through the individual thinking of what other people who living around want them to do it. From the extant studies defined subjective norm as user's thinking of the anticipation of necessary friends on their social media is concerned with messages by passing along the brand (Shan & King, 2015).

However, Wan et al. (2017) have identified that the feeling of user want or don't want to perform the specific thing base on the other people that influence on them. The previous studies, they have determined that the people will try to use the new technology when they have joined in using with another user. Past researched, (Lee, 2010) showed that Subjective Norm may determine as the belief that they got from the others idea. Ham et al. (2015) have found Subjective Norm is the perception that necessary individual and social member may support and agree with specific action. Finlay, Trafimow, and Moroi (1999) defined subjective norm as the personal's perception or idea about what valuable of others believe the personal should do in a particular condition. Current study determine subjective norm as the faith of the individual receive from other people's ideas that make user are trying to use a new technology.

2.2.6 Perceived Risk (PR)

Generally, researcher has defined perceived risk depending on their own studies contexts. According to Peter and Ryan (1976) has determined Perceived Risk (PR) is typed of personal believed of loss something. Past studied, (Featherman & Pavlou, 2003) determined perceived risk is the predictable to loss something when continuance desire of user in using something. Previous research has defined perceived risk is the impact of endanger on the user decision making (Lin, 2008). According to Yang et al. (2015) showed that due to the unreliability of using m-payment, so the increase of user understand the predicable losses would be created. However, Chopdar et al. (2018) have determined perceived risk that kind of obstacle or interruption that will effect desire of people to use the network application.

Another researcher, (He & Mykytyn, 2008) identified perceived risk is the consumer's personal assessment of the electronic payment (e-payment) system's endanger when his or her buying products through the webside. Bauer (1960) examined two components of perceived risk; they are can be: unreliability (after the purchase products the lack of knowledge is happened) and the consequences of negative feeling after shopping. Hofstede (1980) determined perceived risk as personal thinking intimidate of unclear information, not specific and situations unreliable, thus the user try to avoid such these conditions. Therefore, current study is raised up two sub variables to measure the degree of perceived risk that including financial risk and privacy risk.

2.2.6.1 Financial Risk (FCR)

In order to understand the financial risk (Cunningham, 1967) determined as the probability of miserable a financial loss because of costs is hidden, keeping costs or an absence of agreement in case of mistake. Previous researches Featherman and Pavlou (2003) determined as the user perceived that usage of m-payment achievable losing money could be happened. When consumer do the transaction of money's transfer into account e-payment they will increase the amount information of financial. For example, account number and password is stole and money loss while they processing system. Wang et al. (2012) financial risk refers to the lack of security and control the system that can make the user loss money during use a system.

Kuisma et al. (2007) financial risk has found as the possible for losing of money while the error of transaction or illegal of using bank account. Base on Featherman and Wells (2010) determined financial risk in the context of using an e-payment service, that the evaluation of behavioral by the user on the possible monetary losses because of internet deception. In this research, defined financial risk as the process of losing money due to the transferring or paying money over the internet.

2.2.6.2 Privacy Risk (PVR)

According to Chiu et al. (2012) have been defined privacy risk that the possible of losing control more than one information of consumer. Yang et al. (2015) indicated that privacy risk is another major consumer concern in m-payment which is involved with e-payment adoption due to private information, by that consumers are required to use those private information such as phone numbers, number of social security, pin code, locations of using, receipt of shopping, and so on that could lead to privacy risk. Many extant studies has defined privacy risk as the possible of losing control on the information of user, as such information may get on the third party hand and private account may get hack from other person Featherman and Pavlou (2003). Privacy risk, recent research of e-payment shopping usage, that the estimation performance of the user on possible loss to the privacy and unofficially of individual determination information which can lead to possible determine stealing (Featherman and Wells, 2010).

Therefore, Wang et al. (2012) Privacy risk is refer to the personal information of user can be hack by someone or third hand party Featherman, Miyazaki and Sprott (2010) have also indicted privacy risk that user's evaluative assessment of value related to information losses to the individual of believe personally determine information and involved with evaluation of potential illegal use of that information that can be result in others. Westin (1967) pointed out privacy risk as the request of personal to find out for themselves when, how, and to what extent information about us is represented to others. In this research, privacy risk is the personal information can be shared or hacked by third parties.

2.2.7 Behavioral Intention (BI)

Davis (1989) has found behavioral intention is the level that a person has created aware of willing to use or don't use the particular things. Another researchers, (Lin, 2008) defined behavioral intention that an action of the advantage of personal want to make an effort while using specific conduct. Base on the Theory of Reason Action (TRA) (Fishbein & Ajzen, 1975), the Theory of planned Behavior (TPB) (Taylor & Todd, 1995), and TAM model (Davis, 1989) they confirmed that consumer's want to have an experience with a new technology is aware of easy may be describe and estimate the conduct of their intentions. On the other hand, (Ajzen & Fishbein, 1980) have discussed that an intention-based model that obtained from social norm regulations, the Theory Reason Action (TRA) shown a way to evidence in an indicating and give an explanation of effectively all people behavior.

According to Suki (2011) Behavioral Intention defined as the use of measure the probability that the people will intention to use the things. Riskinanto, Kelana and Hilmawan (2017) have defined an intention of consumer's to perform a particular behavior. In this research, we determine behavioral intention refer to the wish of people about they begin to take as one of their behavior with E-payment. Therefore, we will use the theory of Technology of Acceptance Model (TAM) base on Theory Reason Action (TRA) and Theory Plan Behavior (TPB) to measure the intention of people on using e-payment, so this is useful for researching E-payment.

2.3 Hypotheses Development

2.3.1 The Relationship between Perceived Usefulness and Behavioral Intention

In the research of Kwasi (2007) explained the intention to use the technology has direct positive effect by perceived usefulness. In the past researches by Venkatesh and Davis (2000) also combining analysis to act the perceived usefulness on an intention to shop online by using TAM, and the result has positively and influences the behavioral intention. However, Ramayah (2005) the study of online shop context is showed that perceived usefulness is the variable that no significant in measuring with the intention. In the study of Riskinanto et al. (2017) has explained that perceived usefulness is the variable that has a positive effect to intention in e-banking context. However, Ashraf et al. (2016) test found that perceived usefulness also effect on intention to purchase from a website in e-comers context. Base on Suki, (2011) have tested perceived usefulness has significant and it is an important factor that effect the behavior and intention. Therefore, this study implied following hypothesis that:

Hypothesis H1: The perceived usefulness will be positively related to behavioral intention.

2.3.2 The Relationship between Perceived Usefulness and Attitude

According to Jahangir and Begum (2008) has tested that perceived usefulness is the variables that has significant and relationship with customer attitude. Riskinanto et al. (2017) research was confirmed that there are significant between perceived usefulness and attitude. Another studies, Wu and Wang (2005) also found that perceived usefulness has positive affect on attitude in the study of E-Marketing. Past researched, (Joo and Sang, 2013; Persico, Manca, and Pozzi, 2014) found that perceived usefulness was significant effect on attitude. Therefore, Ayeh, Au, and Law (2013) illustrated that perceived usefulness and attitude has relationship with each other. Past study by Agag and El-Masry (2016) also determined that perceived usefulness had significant influence on attitude. However, Workman (2014) tested show that perceived usefulness and attitude have significant effect on attitude. Therefore, the study proposed the following hypothesis:

Hypothesis H2: The perceived usefulness will be positively related to attitude.

2.3.3 The Relationship between Attitude and Behavioral Intention

In the studies of Davis (1989) was found that attitude has significant effect on behavioral intention. According to Kim et al. (2013) also found the significant relationship and intention in Social Commerce. Kim et al. (2017) tested found that attitude had a positive relationship with behavioral intention in context of Smart Home Service. However, Elkaseh et al. (2016) found that attitude and behavioral intention had a significant relationship together in Social Media context. On the other hand, in the study of internet hotel booking by Agag and Masry (2016) found that attitude has significant effect on user intention. In support of Munoz-Leiva et al. (2012) showed that attitude significant influence on intention to use technology. So, the study proposed the following hypothesis:

Hypothesis H3: The attitude will be positively related to its behavioral intention.

2.3.4 The Mediator of Attitude on Perceived Usefulness and Behavioral Intention

In the past research has found that when the user are perceived very useful of service they would prefer to use the new system (Jahangir & Begum, 2008). Kanchanatanee et al. (2014) confirmed that willing to conduct a particular system depends on the personal satisfaction and perception. When consumer have satisfied with a new technology they would like to have an experience on it. According to Khalifa and Liu (2007) found that user positive attitude may not important lead to intention to order when internet shopping habit has not been created. However, Agag and Masry (2016) argued that when the user has never had an experience in internet hotel booking their attitude towards internet hotel booking will lead to intention to book hotel online even though internet shopping habit have not yet created. According to above literature review, this study implied as the following hypothesis:

Hypothesis H4: The attitude will be mediate the relationship between perceived usefulness and behavioral intention.

2.3.5 The Relationship between Perceived Ease of Use and Behavioral Intention

Past researched (Guriting & Ndubisi, 2006) showed that the perceived ease of use was the variable which had positive significant relationship with behavioral intention. According to Carter and Belanger (2004) researched on adoption of an online tax system tested also found that perceived ease of use have significant relationship on the use of technology. In the research by Dwivedi et al. (2008) tested found perceived ease of use as the one of the control variable that effect on user behavioral intention in using broadband in Pakistan have showed that it has a significant effect on using information of system. Therefore, the research of Agag and Masry (2016) showed that perceived ease of use has direct significant effect on consumer willing to book hotel online. Base on Autry et al. (2010) suggested that base on the technological turbulence of the industry perceived ease of use and intention had a significant relationship each other. So, the hypothesis was implies as the following:

Hypothesis H5: There is significant effect between perceived ease of use with behavioral Intention.

2.3.6 The Relationship between Perceived Ease of Use and Attitude

Previous studies (Agag & Masry, 2016) showed that perceived ease of use has significant influence on user mind. Jahangir and Begum (2008) also found perceived ease of use and attitude has the relationship significant with each other. According to Riskinanto et al. (2017) studied suggest that perceived ease of use has strongly significant with attitude. In the research of by Kanchanatanee et al. (2014) found that perceived ease of use has significant influence on consumer attitude in E-marketing context. However, Jahangir and Begum, (2008) also recovered that perceived ease of use and attitude has relationship significant with each other in e-banking context. Due to the previous mentioned, this study proposed hypothesis as the following:

Hypothesis H6: The perceived ease of use will be positively related to attitude.

2.3.7 The Mediator of Attitude on Perceived Ease of Use Behavioral Intention

An early studied (Jahangir & Begum, 2008) showed that the perceived of user about the system is very conveneint to use or it is not complicated to understand, learn or operate and they showed that perceived ease of use and user intention has relationship immediately by customer attitude. Based on Suki (2011) have explained the user willing to use 3G services of mobile is showed by their perception in terms of how free of difficulty internet is to contact with other. In the studies by Ayeh, Au and Law. (2013) suggested that the person who usually unfavorable to use the consumer-generated media (CGM) would like to have intention of using CGM for their travel planning when they realize that is easy to do in CGM context. Due to above mention, so the mediating of attitude on perceived ease of use and behavioral intention of e-payment is going to be tested in this study. Thus, the current research implied the hypothesis as following below:

Hypothesis H7: The attitude mediates while perceived ease of use in relation with behavior intention.

2.3.8 The Relationship between Attitude and eWOM

In the research of Casalo et al. (2011) examined the attitude has a significant impact on the eWOM. Ayeh et al. (2013) also showed that attitude and eWOM have significant relationship with each other. An early study attitudes of user have been tested by researchers in many studies that related to eWOM (Park et al., 2007; Prendergast et al., 2010). According to Ladhari and Michaud (2015) suggested that the ideas appear which had the similar meaning of the eWOM that directly affected on the user felling due to the positive feedback improves consumer thinking. Many researches focus on eWOM to attitude, so the relationship between attitude and eWOM is going to test in this research. So, this research proposed the relation hypothesis as following: Hypothesis H8: The attitude will be positively related to its eWOM.
2.3.9 The Relationship between eWOM and Behavioral Intention

According to Tsao et al. (2015) tested recovered that eWOM has significant effect on purchase intentions in hotel review on booking intention context. Jalilvand and Samiei (2012) have indicated eWOM that the variable has significant impact on behavioral intention. In the study by Mortazavi, Rahim Esfidan and Shaemi Barzoki (2014) also indicated that eWOM is influenced on user's purchase intentions. However, Internet communities have power important to affect user behavior, through eWOM (Soares et al., 2012). Moreover, Godes and Mayzlin (2004) determined that user do purchasing decisions based on their-created information through the internet. Past research by Gruen et al. (2006); Lin et al. (2005) illustrated that eWOM also the variable that significant influence people loyalty and purchase decisions. Other researchers (Chatterjee, 2001; Chen & Xie, 2008) tested found that internet user reviews as eWOM has affect consumer behavior. (See-To & Ho, 2014; Wang et al., 2012) researches illustrated that eWOM information and user purchase intentions were significant effect in each other in the social media context. Thus, it is the developed following hypothesis:

Hypothesis H9: The eWOM will be positively related to its behavioral intention.

2.3.10 The Mediator of Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM) on Attitude and Behavioral Intention

Past studied (Casalo et al., 2011, & Ayeh et al., 2013) findings indicated the similar meaning of user's attitude is directed significant effect on the willing to adopt an e-payment. In other words, Zarrad and Debabi (2015) researches have indicated that eWOM and tourist attitude willing to travel has significant effected with each other in the travel intention context. Xiaofen and Yiling (2009) found that eWOM look to be significant impact on customer purchase intention due to the information that they get from social nework and has an effect on their feeling towards the product. Therefore, Hamouda and Tabbane, (2013) test found that attitude towards the recommended product may significant impact on the relationship of eWOM evaluation and purchase intention on online shopping context. Thus, the mediation effect of eWOM on attitude and behavioral intention is going to be tested in this research. This is the developed following hypotheses:

Hypothesis H10: The eWOM will be mediate the relationship between attitude and its behavioral intention.

2.3.11 The Relationship between Subjective Norm and Behavioral Intention

Previous studies showed that the perception of the families, friends and social media was influenced university students to purchase intention (Lim et al., 2015). Cooper and Zmud, (1990); Karahanna et al. (1999) showed that subjective norm has been relation as an important part in examine adoption behavior. In other words, Lu et al. (2005) indicated subjective norms and images by think about consumer feel free in using e-payment. According to Hidayanto et al. (2015) also found that the effect of subjective norm can both positive regard to user receive the profit from using e-payment or the dissatisfy experience get from the negative side. Davis et al. (1989); and Mathieson (1991) research recovered that subjective norm has a significant relationship with intentions. Therefore, this research implies the hypothesis as following:

Hypothesis H13: The subjective norm will be positively related to its behavioral intention.

2.3.12 The Moderator of Subjective Norm on Attitude and Behavioral Intention

An early research by Shan and King (2015) showed that customer feeling toward spreading the viral messages of advertising connected with social pressure influence on the behavioral intention of such ads sharing, and the relationship between subject norms and attitude has significant impact on the intention of referral. Past research by Chiou (1998); Lee, Tsai, and Jih (2006) found that subjective norms and attitude were the variables to measure behavioral intention. In the studied of Kim et al. (2013) indicated that subjective norm is likely to help user to get a positive thinking toward behavior from the effect of the behavioral intention is the reason of they perceived. Therefore, in this context the implied the hypothesis as following:

Hypothesis H14: The subjective norm will be moderate the relationship between attitude and its behavioral intention.

2.3.13 The Relationship between Perceived Risk and Behavioral Intention

Past studies (Barkhordari et al., 2016) showed that the intention to use a system has negative effected by perceived risk. In the studies by Nguyen and Huynh, (2018) also explained that perceived risk has negative influence on e-payment conduct. Chandra et al. (2010) and Yang et al. (2011) recovered perceived risk that is tested of a non-cash influence on the decision of using system. According to Hidayanto et al. (2015) tested showed that user perceived the risk did not effect on their concept to conduct e-payment. However, (Wood & Scheer, 1996; Chang & Chen, 2008) perceived risk negative significant impact consumer purchase intentions. In other words, (Wood and Scheer 1996) found that customer may increase their purchase intentions when the perceived risk is being reduced. Chiu et al. (2012) showed

that when customer have known about internet shopping can make negative effect, they may avoid those negative effect by stop to internet shopping. Past studied by Floyd, Gibson, Pennington Gray, and Thapa (2003) study indicated that perceived risk has significant impact on travel intentions in the aftermath of 911 events in the United States. Therefore, this study implies the hypothesis as following:

Hypothesis H11: The perceived risk will be positively related to its behavioral intention.

2.3.14 The Moderator of Perceived Risk on Attitude and Behavioral Intention

In the past research, showed perceived risk is this construct that has a negative significant effect on both the attitude toward the technology and the intention to make online transactions (Crespo, Bosque & Sánchez, 2009). On the other hands, (Ajzen, 1985, 1988; Parsons, Siegel, & Cousins, 1997) studied found that attitude is being formed by perceived risks as user connect with determines behavioral intention. However, that behavior Jarvenpaa. Tractinsky, and Vitale (2000) illustrated that weak levels of risk perception and strong levels of benefit perception toward an object increase the attitude orientation of a customer and their behavior. Moreover, (Jarvenpaa et al., 2000) test found that weak risk perception related to internet purchases impact customer positive attitude toward the internet store. In the studies by Chio, Lee, and OK. (2013) studied determined that customer perceived risk has significant support attitudes on the street food context. Thus, current study proposed the hypothesis as following:

Hypothesis H14: The perceived risk will be moderate the relationship between attitude and behavioral intention.

CHAPTER THREE RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

In this chapter, the study going to describe the Hypothesis with the framework that have raised nine constructs to study and explore. Furthermore, this chapter will explain the method that will use to measure and analyze in this research and also shows the questionnaire design to survey.

3.1 Research Model

According to the above research hypotheses development, this study develops a research framework. (See Figure 3.1)



Figure 3.1 Research Model

Source: Original Study

Hypothesis H1: The perceived usefulness will be positively related to behavioral intention.

Hypothesis H2: The perceived usefulness will be positively related to attitude.

Hypothesis H3: The attitude will be positively related to behavioral Intention.

Hypothesis H4: The attitude will mediate the relationship between perceived usefulness and behavioral intention.

Hypothesis H5: The perceived ease of use will be positively related to behavioral Intention.

Hypothesis H6: The perceived ease of use will be positively related to attitude.

Hypothesis H7: The attitude will be mediate the relationship between perceived ease of use and behavioral intention.

Hypothesis H8: The attitude will be positively related to electronic word of mouth (eWOM).

Hypothesis H9: The electronic word of mouth (eWOM) will be positively related to behavioral intention.

Hypothesis H10: The electronic word of mouth (eWOM) will be mediate relationship between attitude and behavioral intention.

Hypothesis H11: The subjective norm will be positively related to behavioral intention.

Hypothesis H12: The subjective norm will be moderate the relationship between attitude and behavioral intention.

Hypothesis H13: The perceived risk will be positively related to behavioral intention.

Hypothesis H14: The perceived risk will be moderate the relationship between attitude and behavioral intention.

3.2 Sampling and Data Collection

The study would be conducted the quantitative data by surveying Google Form, and the link will send to respondents through social network, as such Facebook, Gmail, Instagram..., etc. The link was let the respondent tick the seven likert scales that state the questionnaire items, and the sampling data expected that there were 350 respondents in order to be the reference and sampling to study in the intention of an e-payment context. After collecting the data meet with the requirement, the data would be exported into the SPSS (.sav) file. The method of analyzing the data stated in the Data Analysis Procedure part.

3.3 Research Instrument

The study would be targeted on the people who have the job as the employee, and they can be the undergraduate and graduated people. The questionnaire would be divided into two parts, construct and demographics. Firstly, TAM factor will included eight questionnaires of Perceived Usefulness and Perceived Ease of Use with nine questionnaires, TPB factor of Attitude with eight questionnaires, Subjective Norm with seven questionnaires, Behavioral Intention with nine questionnaires, eWOM factor with five questionnaires, Perceived risk factor included Financial Risk with 3 questionnaires, Privacy Risk with 4 questionnaires. Therefore, the total items in this questionnaire have 53 questionnaires for measure the behavioral intention of people who want to adopt e-payment. Secondly, the Demographic part will use the age, gender, age, type of industry, education level and frequency of using internet to measure the behavior of the consumer's intention on e-payment. Lastly, the questionnaire items listed below are subject to change, especially when we get feedback from the quality of research.

In the current study, it uses the seven-point scale called Likert scale with 1=strongly disagree, 2=disagree, 3=partially disagree, 4=neutral, 5=partially agree, 6=agree and 7=strongly agree denotes. Thus, the scale will appear in the

questionnaire survey by letting the respondent rates their perception of the items.

3.4 Translation

According to the items of questionnaire created in English, and the survey need target the people who were employed in Cambodia. Thus, conducting the questionnaire would be careful by translating into the Khmer language in order to be a convenience for the respondent easy to understand the question is talking about. The question was sent to the professional translator center in Cambodia to make the questionnaire more professional and match with the meaning between English and Khmer version. Then, it should be double check by using the questionnaire in the Khmer language to translate in the English version in order to be transparent with these two languages version. Therefore, the final version of Khmer language questionnaire will confirm after double check the meaning of these two languages with modifying some problem.

3.5 Construct Measurement

In this research, there are seven constructs to study. Those constructs are Perceived usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use, Attitude, Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM), Subjective Norm, Perceived Risk and Behavioral Intention. Each construct has component and questionnaire items that is based on the previous research in order to create the questionnaire items to study.

3.5.1 Perceived-Usefulness (PU)

According to literature review mention above the perceived usefulness will be based on the scale of measurement of the variable with eight questionnaire items to measure (Fathema et al., 2015). Therefore, the following of the questionnaire would be implied below:

(PU1) E-payment helps me be more effective.

(PU2) E-payment helps me be more productive.

(PU3) E-payment gives me more control over the activities on my payment.

(PU4) E-payment help me to be easier to purchase the thing more quickly.

(PU5) E-payment saves me time when I use it.

(PU6) E-payment would make it convenience for me to support my work.

(PU7) E-payment would allow me to completed my work more quickly.

(PU8) Generally, My payment through e-payment is very useful.

3.5.2 Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU)

In this study, Perceived Ease of Use will be the factor that identified as independent variable that determine the belief of consumer using new technology and it measures with nine questionnaires (Tella & Olasina, 2014). The list of this nine questionnaires items are shown in the following:

(PEOU1) E-payment is uncomplicated to use.

(PEOU2) E-payment is simple to use.

(PEOU3) E-payment help me less face to face interaction.

(PEOU4) I think that using E-payment is effortless.

(PEOU5) E-payment make payment easier than before.

(PEOU6) E-payment is rigid and flexible.

(PEOU7) I would like use e-payment both occasional and regular payment.

(PEOU8) E-payment technology is an easy mean of payment.

(PEOU9) Overall, I can use E-payment successfully every time.

3.5.3 Attitude (ATT)

Based on the study defined the attitude in this context, it is related to like and dislike of using the e-payment. Questionnaire of this study was based on Riskinanto et al. (2017). There are eight of research questionnaire items, and its items have illustrated in the following:

(ATT1) It is intelligent using e-payment.

(ATT2) It gives a lot of benefit when use e-payment.

(ATT3) I like using system of e-payment.

(ATT4) I have positive thinking toward e-payment.

(ATT5) E-payment system is appealing.

(ATT6) E-payment system is wonderful.

(ATT7) E-payment is welcome idea to replace traditional payment.

(ATT8) Overall, I like to use e-payment.

3.5.4 Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM)

The study defines eWOM as the extent to which individual behavior is influenced by surrounded people, and also within the internet network or website. eWOM included five items based on Tham, Croy, and Mair (2013). All of the list "eWOM" five questionnaires items are implied below:

(EWM1) I'm willing to considerate the information that I accepted.

(EWM2) I'm willing to share the information to my friend that suggestion of information is good for me.

(EWM3) I can received the large potential of the information of a big Onlinechannel community.

(EWM4) I'm willing to accept diverse information regarding to the different online-channel.

(EWM5) I'm willing to receive different kind of information and review from different online-platform.

3.5.5 Subjective Norm (SN)

Base on Wan et al. (2017) Subjective Norm defined as the thinking of society and culture that effect on the people to try to use e-payment in this context. Thus, this study will base this previous research of the seven questionnaires on measuring this problem by the following:

(SN1) My friends are essential to me to make a focus on using e-payment.

(SN2) My friends are thinking that using e-payment is good.

(SN3) My friends often share e-payment information to me.

(SN4) My friends start to use e-payment too.

(SN5) My friends who effect on me would think that I should use e-payment.

(SN6) My friends whose ideas are important to me would like that I should use e-payment.

(SN7) Overall, my friends are closed to me to support my using of e- payment.

3.5.6 Perceived Risk (PR)

In the literature review above, perceived risk is the pressure that can interrupt the willingness of using e-payment. All of these components of perceived risk, this study will concerned with the items based on Chopdar et al. (2018) developed the seven questionnaire items by divided into factors including financial risk with 3 questionnaires and privacy risk with 4 questionnaires as the following below:

3.5.6.1 Financial risk (FR)

(FCR1) I worry when I transfer money through the internet, I am afraid that I may lose my money.

(FCR2) I worry about mistakes of careless such as put a wrong account number and put wrong the amount of my money.

(FCR3) I worry that I cannot get compensation when transaction errors happened.

3.5.6.2 Privacy Risk (PVR)

(PVR1) I think E-payment provider would not send my personal information to the third party.

(PVR2) I'm afraid that other people may be able to access my account when I'm using E-payment.

(PVR3) I feel not totally safe to provide my privacy personal information over the internet paying.

(PVR4) I think the application may not let me fell bored with accessing the Epayment.

3.5.7 Behavioral Intention (BI)

The last variable that is the important part of the finding is the behavioral intention of e-payment. It would be the measurement of how the users intention to adopt an e-payment, also recommend to their relatives, promote to other people to decide to adopt e-payment system. Nine questionnaires items based on Tella and Olasina, (2014) will use to measure the intention of user by the following below:

(BI1) I would like to use E- payment.

(BI2) I would like to recommend the importance of E-payment.

(BI3) I am planning to continue to use E-payment.

(BI4) I would like to use E-payment when purchasing something.

(BI5) Using the E-payment for handling my paying transactions is something I would do.

(BI6) I hope that the use of e-payment for my payment would be continue.

(BI7) I would recommend for e-payment system because it is convenient.

(BI8) I would continue to use of e-payment system.

(BI9) I have planned to use an e-payment system in the future base on a regular basis.

3.5.8 Demographics

The demographic dimension had created to estimate the differences of every respondent who take part in this survey. According to previous studies also the measurement demand for this study, the personal demographic features can be measured by the following indicators:

- Gender
- Age
- Educational level
- Income level
- Frequency of using internet.

3.6 Pilot Test

The Pilot tested, is selected a number of people are trying to use the system under their check and provide the recommendation system before the full of deployment. A trial test had conducted in quantitative study by taking from 50 respondents in Cambodia. Then, the form of questionnaires will send to respondents as the line through email, Facebook..., etc. Thus, this trial data

was analyzed in reliability test to get the internal consistency of each item and factors. On the other hand, an acceptable level of internal consistency would be reflected in the Cronbach's α value of no less than 0.7 or 70% for the research. Therefore, the results of the Cronbach's α showed that the questionnaires of all variables had relatively high coefficient α higher than 0.7.

3.7 Data Analysis Procedure

The research will use SPSS version 21 for conduct the data analysis, and it is used the methodological technique such as:

- The Analysis of Descriptive Statistic
- The Analysis of Factor and Reliability
- The Sample of Independent Sample
- The Analysis of One-way ANOVA
- The Analysis of Simple Linear Regression
- The Analysis of Multiple Regression
- The Analysis of Hierarchical Regression

3.7.1 The Analysis of Descriptive Statistic

The research used method named Descriptive Statistic Analysis is extremely useful to check the characteristics of the variables. It deliberated the means of each variable, and the standard deviations also mentioned.

3.7.2 The Analysis of Factor and Reliability

In order to conduct the research constructs, this study would confirmed the dimensional and reliability, and there are several processes of purification that including analysis of factor, analysis of correlation, and Cronbach's alpha. The purpose of the analysis of factor is to determine the research constructs of dimensionality, to compare the selected items with items is suggested theoretically, and questionnaire items need to select with high factor loading. The item-to-total correlation and coefficient alpha would be evaluated to investigate the internal regularity and reliability of the constructs. Eigenvalues (Latent roots), screen test, and other criteria will be chosen to identify the number of dimensions is took out from the factor analysis of principal component. Following criteria including factor loading >0.6; Eigenvalue >1, accumulated explained variance > 60%, Item-to-total correlation >0.5, and coefficient cronbach's alpha (α) > 0.7 will be adopted in this study. Those questionnaire items that do not fulfill these criteria would be deleted by using SPSS 21.

3.7.3 The Sample of Independent T-test

To check whether the differences between two groups in relation with single variable, independent sample t-test is used for this case. In this research, it was adopted Levene test, F-value, and t-value in the seven constructs: Perceived Usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use, Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM), Subjective Norm, Perceived Risk, and Behavioral Intention.

3.7.4 The Analysis of One-way ANOVA

To check whether the differences between more than two groups in relation to one variable. In this study, it was conducted one-way ANOVA to compare the differences between demographic variables (i.e., Genders, Ages, Educational Levels, Incomes level, and Frequencies of using internet) of the respondents in the seven constructs: Perceived Usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use, Attitude, Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM), Subjective Norm, Perceived Risk, and Behavioral Intention. The analysis will be significant with F-value test, Lenvene test, and Post hoc test.

3.7.5 The Analysis of Regression

Analysis of Simple Linear Regression:

The analysis of simple linear regression is used to test the relationship between two factors or constructs, which the value being predicted is the dependent variable and the value played to be prepared for is called independent variable. It is regularly used in research as it create that a correlation exists between variables. The purpose of simple linear regression analysis is to identify how variables are connected or to what extent variables are comparable with each other. In this research, the simple linear regression analysis is performed to investigate the relative have an impact on the seven constructs Perceived Usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use, Attitude, Electronic Word of Mouth, Subjective Norm, Perceived Risk, and Behavioral Intention. Analysis of Multiple Regression:

Multiple regression is used to investigate the value of a variable deepened on the value of two or more other variables. The variable that used to predict is called the dependent variable. Moreover, multiple regression also admit the study to identify the general fit of the model and the relative of each of the predictors to the total variance explained. The analysis will be significant when the R² higher than 0.1 (R²>0.1), correlation higher than 0.3 and F-value is higher than 4. In this research, the analysis of multiple regression is conducted to examine the mediating variable of Attitude (ATT) between independent variable of Perceived Usefulness (PU) and dependent variable Behavioral Intention (BI), mediating variable of Attitude (ATT) between independent variable of Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU) and dependent variable

of Behavioral Intention (BI), and the mediating variable of Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM) between independent variable of Attitude (ATT) and dependent variable of the Behavioral Intention (BI). Analysis of Hierarchical Regression:

To check how moderating variable of Subjective Norm effect on the relationship between the independent variable of Attitude (ATT) and the dependent variable of Behavioral Intention (BI), moderating variable of Perceived Risk (PR) on the relationship between the independent variable of Attitude (ATT) and the dependent variable of the Behavioral Intention (BI), and the method called hierarchical regression analysis was conducted.



CHAPTER FOUR DATA ANALYSIS AND RESULTS

In this chapter, it will show and interpreted about the result of the data that get from surveyed. There are three sections of the interpretation of data. First section, it will illustrate the descriptive analysis and show the statistical amount of respondent by stating the demographics of them. Second section, it will demonstrate the factor loading and reliability of all the items in order to measure the questionnaire that answered by respondents. Third section, it will express the CFA in to double check the factor of each items. And the next step will talk about the T-test and ANOVA analysis between the groups of demographics. The last section, it will present the path of the coefficient of character and communicate the hypothesis of the study.

4.1 The Analysis of Descriptive

The analysis of descriptive will showed the characteristics and information of the respondents. Moreover, it also exhibit the mean and standard deviation of the relevant research questionnaires items.

4.1.1 Characteristic of Respondents

After get the data from respondents, the survey need requires the respondent to answer some important information for recognize some group of people. So, the characteristic of respondents will present in Table 4.1. This part displayed the statistics of demographic of respondents which describe the characteristic five categories: genders, ages, education levels, income levels and frequency of using internet were collected and measured. (See Table 4.1)

Item	Description	Frequency	Percent
Gender	Male	179	51.1%
	Female	171	48.9%
Age	20-30 years old	233	66.6%
	31-40 years old	100	28.6%
-	41-50 years old	10	2.9%
-	>50 years old	7	2.0%
Education	Bachelor	204	58.3%
Level	Master	105	30%
-	Ph.d	41	11.7%
Income	200\$-300\$	42	12%
Level	310\$-400\$	119	34%
	410\$-500\$	42	12%
	510\$-600\$	41	11.7%
-	More than 610\$	106	30.3%
Frequency of	<1 hour/day	5	1.4%
using	1>2 hours/day	118	33.7%
internet per	2>3 hours/day	107	30.6%
day	>3 hours/day	120	34.3%

Table 4.1 Characteristic of Respondent in This Research (n=350)

Source: Original Study

Table 4.1 show the characteristics of respondent, including genders, ages, education levels, income levels, frequency of using internet per day. There are 51.1% of respondents are male, 48.9% are female. The respondents those 20 to 30 years old are 66.6%, 31 to 40 years old are 28.6%, and the number of respondents from 41 to 50 years old are 2.9%, respondent who has age more than 51 years old are 2%. It is also illustrates that 58.3% of respondents are

bachelor, 30% are master, and 11% are ph.d. Moreover, the respondents that has income between 200\$ to 300\$ is 12%, 310\$ to 400\$ are 34%, from 410\$-500\$ is 12%, and from 510\$-600\$ is 11.7%, and 30.3% for the respondents that has income more than 610\$ per month. For frequency of using internet, the largest number of respondent that using internet more than 3 hours/days is 34.3%, 33.7% are using 1 to 2 hours/day, 30.6% is the using between 2 to 3 hours/day, and smallest number is 1.4% of using internet per day.

4.1.2 Measurement results of relevant research variables

Table 4.2 illustrate the descriptive statistic of each questionnaire items. The table presented eight questionnaires of Perceived Usefulness (PU), nine questionnaires of Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU), eight questionnaires of Attitude (ATT), five questionnaires of Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM), seven questionnaires of Subjective Norm (SN), seven questionnaires of Perceived Risk (PR) (including three questionnaires of Financial Risk (FR), and four questionnaires of Privacy Risk (PVR), and nine questionnaires of Behavioral Intention (BI). Thus, Table 4-2 is detailed the mean and standard deviation of each items that has answered by respondent. The opinions of target respondents will described in Table 4.2 below: (See table 4.2)

Item	Description	Mean	Standard Deviation
Perceived	usefulness		
PU1	E-payment helps me be more effective.	6.12	.921
PU2	E-payment helps me be more productive.	6.22	.954
PU3	E-payment gives me more control over the activities on my payment.	6.25	.905

Table 4.2 Descriptive Analysis for questionnaire items

Itom	Description	Moon	Standard	
Item	Description	Mean	Deviation	
PI 1/1	E-payment help me to be easier to	6 3 5	800	
104	purchase the thing more quickly.		.077	
PU5	E-payment saves me time when I use it.	6.27	.977	
PU6	E-payment would make it easier for me to	617	974	
100	carry out my tasks.	0.17	.,,,,,	
PU7	E-payment would enable me to	613	984	
107	accomplish my tasks more quickly.	0.15		
PU8	Overall, My payment through e-payment	6 23	936	
is very useful.		0.25	.,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	
Perceived	Ease of Use			
PEOU1	E-payment is easy to use.	6.30	.905	
PEOU2	E-payment is simple to use.	6.34	.928	
PEOU3	E-payment help me less face to face	6 34	.893	
	interaction.	0.51		
PEOU4	I think that using E-payment is effortless.	6.28	.902	
PEOU5	E-payment make payment easier than	6 30	950	
	before.	0.50	.,,,,,	
PEOU6	E-payment is rigid and flexible.	6.17	.895	
PEOU7	I would like use e-payment both	616	892	
12007	occasional and regular payment.	0.10	.072	
PEOU8	E-payment system is an easy mean of	6 24	932	
	payment.	0.21	.,,,,	
PEOU9	Overall, I can use E-payment successfully	6.32	.875	
	every time.	0.02		

1 dolo 1.2 Descriptive marysis for questionnane items (continued)	Table 4.2 Descriptive	Analysis for c	juestionnaire items	(continued)
---	-----------------------	----------------	---------------------	-------------

Itom	Description	Moon	Standard
Item	Description	Ivitali	Deviation
Attitude			
ATT1	It is intelligent using e-payment.	6.09	.912
ATT2	It gives a lot of benefit when use e- payment.	6.09	.912
ATT3	I like use e-payment system.	6.18	.907
ATT4	I have positive thinking toward e- payment.	6.17	.888
ATT5	E-payment system is appealing.	6.10	.866
ATT6	E-payment system is wonderful.	6.19	.904
ATT7	Replacing traditional payment with e- payment is welcome idea.	6.19	.899
ATT8	Overall, I like to use e-payment.	6.30	.896
Electronic	Word of Mouth (eWOM)	/	I
EWOM1	I'm willing to considerate the information that I accepted.	6.06	.872
EWOM2	I'm willing to share the information to my friend that suggestion of information is good for me.	6.12	.854
EWOM3	I can received the large potential of the information of a big Online-channel community.	6.10	.866

Table 4.2 Descriptive Analysis for questionnaire items (continued)

Itom	Decorintion	Maan	Standard
Item	Description	Mean	Deviation
EWOM4	I'm willing to accept diverse information regarding the product through different online-channel.	6.08	.890
EWOM5	I'm willing to receive different kind of information and review from different online-platform.	6.19	.865
Subjective	e Norm		
SN1	My friends are essential to me to make a focus on using e-payment.	6.19	.856
SN2	My friends are thinking that using e- payment is good.	6.22	.864
SN3	My friends often share e-payment information to me.	6.20	.954
SN4	My friends start to use e-payment too.	6.22	.942
SN5	My friends who influence me would think that I should use e-payment.	6.25	.917
SN6	My friends whose opinions are valued to me would prefer that I should use e- payment.	6.20	.969
SN7	Overall, my friends are important to me to support my using of e- payment.	6.25	.934

Table 4.2 Descriptive Analysis for questionnaire items (continued)

Itom	Description	Moon	Standard			
Item	Description	Mean	Deviation			
Perceived Risk (Financial Risk, Privacy Risk)						
Financial	Risk					
	I worry when transferring money on the					
FR1	internet, I am afraid that I will lose my	6.21	.881			
	money.					
	I worry about careless mistakes such as					
FR2	wrong input of account number and	6.20	.937			
	wrong input of the amount of money.					
FR 3	I worry that when transaction errors	6.20	026			
TR5	occur, I cannot get compensation.	0.20	., =0			
Privacy R	isk	U	L			
	I think that the E-payment provider would	11				
PVR1	not send my personal information to the	6.34	.906			
	third party.					
	I'm worried to use E-payment because					
PVR2	other people may be able to access my	6.20	.897			
	account					
	I would not feel totally safe providing					
PVR3	personal privacy information over the	6.26	.906			
	Internet paying.					
	I think the application may not let me fell					
PVR4	bored with accessing the E-navment	6.32	.897			
	corea what accessing the E payment.					

Table 4.2 Descriptive Analysis for questionnaire items (continued)

Itom	Description	Maan	Standard
Item	Description	Mean	Deviation
Behaviora	l Intention		·
BI1	I would like to use E- payment.	6.40	.927
BI2	I would like to recommend the importance of E-payment.	6.38	.897
BI3	I am planning to continue to use E- payment.	6.40	.952
BI4	I would like to use E-payment when purchasing something.	6.41	.955
BI5	Using the E-payment for handling my paying transactions is something I would do.	6.34	.968
BI6	I expect that the use of e-payment for my payment should continue.	6.40	.902
BI7	I would advocate for e-payment system because it is convenient.	6.41	.897
BI8	No matter what, I will support continued usage of e-payment system.	6.32	.931
BI9	I plan on using the e-payment system on a regular basis in the future.	6.40	.971

 Table 4.2 Descriptive Analysis for questionnaire items (continued)

Source: Original study

4.2 Factor Analysis and Reliability

Factor anlysis and reliability is the part to identify the dimensionality and reliability of each questionnair items, the study will use the factor and reliability technique to notice the items of the survey. There are two analyzes in this part. The first analysis is factor loading the internal consistency and reliability of the construct, and second analysis will identify the Cronbach's Alpha by considering:

- Factor loading higher than 0.7
- Kaiser-Meyer-Olkin Measure of Sampling Adequacy (KMO) higher than 0.5
- Eigenvalue higher than 1
- Reliability test: Item-to-total correlation equal to or greater than 0.5
- Cronbach's Alpha (α) equal or greater than 0.7.

4.2.1 Perceived-Usefulness (PU)

The factor analysis and reliability test were conducting the eight items of perceived usefulness. And the result were higher than the requirement mentioned above. Table 4.3 illustrate the KMO value of Perceived Usefulness (PU) was 0.948; cronbach's alpha (α) = 0.928 and eigenvalue = 5.32. On the other hand, the perceived usefulness had a total cumulated = 66.72% of explained which illustrates that was necessary underlying factors for this construct. According to all criteria, the research can concluded that the reliability and internal stability of the factor were acceptable. (See Table 4.3)

Res Con	earch struct	Research Items	Factor Loading	Eigen- value	Cumulative Explained	Item-to- total correlation	Cronbach' s Alpha (α)
less		PU1	.795	5.326	66.72%	.728	0.928
efulr	a	PU2	.828			.768	•
d use	.948	PU3	.798			.732	•
Perceived KMO=0	PU4	.835			.776	-	
	PU5	.860			.807	-	
	U	PU6	.822	2	~	.762	
		PU7	.827		10	.776	
		PU8	.758	1	in the	.687	

Table 4.3 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on Perceived

TT C	1
Isetu	Inecc
O SUIU	11033

Note PU = Perceived Usefulness

Source: Original study

4.2.2 Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU)

There are nine questionnaires of Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU) and the KMO value = 0.954 was greater than 0.5. Table 4.4 show the result of factor loading, eigenvalue, percentage of variance explained, and the item to total correlation. Factor loading of all items was higher than 0.5, all items to total correlation was greater than 0.5, and cronbach's alpha (α) = 0.931 was greater than 0.7, eigenvalue = 5.80 was greater than one. The Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU) had a total cumulative = 64.47% of explained which indicate that was necessary underlying factors for this construct. According to all criteria, the research concluded that the reliability and internal stability of the factor were acceptable. (See Table 4.4)

Research Constructs	Research Items	Factor Loading	Eigen- value	Cumulative Explained	Item-to- total correlation	Cronbach 's Alpha (α)
<u>ч</u>	PEOU1	.802	5.802	64.47%	.743	0.931
se o 954)	PEOU2	.818			.762	
l Ea O=.	PEOU3	.814			.757	
eivea (KM	PEOU4	.839			.775	
Perc Use (PEOU5	.828			.774	
	PEOU6	.745			.679	
	PEOU7	.787	1	72	.727	
	PEOU8	.807	2-	\sim	.749	
	PEOU9	.793	NA.	TEL	.733	

Table 4.4 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on Perceived

Ease of Use

Note: PEOU = Perceived Ease of Use

Source: Original Study

4.2.3 Attitude (ATT)

The Attitude (ATT) has eight questionnaires to test factor loading and the reliability. The KMO value of attitude = 0.937 was greater than 0.5. Table 4.5 show that all the value of factor loading, eigenvalue, value of cumulative explained, and the item to correlation was greater than the requirement mention above. The value cronbach's alpha (α) value = 0.911 was greater than 0.7, eigenvalue = 4.933, and the cumulative of attitude had a total value = 61.658% which express that was important underlying factor for this construct. According to all specifications, the research can concluded that the reliability and internal consistency of the factor were acceptable. (See Table 4.5)

Rese Con	earch struct	Research Items	Factor Loading	Eigen- value	Cumulative Explained	Item-to- total correlation	Cronbach' s Alpha (α)
		ATT1	.756	4.933	61.658%	.678	0.911
	(L	ATT2	.787			.713	
Attitude (KMO = 0.93	ATT3	.805			.734	•	
	= 0	ATT4	.778			.704	
	KM	ATT5	.789			.715	
	U	ATT6	.794	2		.722	•
		ATT7	.788		N	.713	
		ATT8	.783	Do.	-0	.708	

Table 4.5 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on Attitude

Note: ATT= Attitude

Source: Original Study

4.2.4 Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM)

Five questionnaires of Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM) is used to check the factor loading and reliability by a test with the requirement of the research has mentioned before. The KMO value of electronic word of mouth = 0.893 was higher than 0.5. In table 4.6 illustrate the greater result than requirement of factor loading, eigenvalue, item to total correlation, cumulative explained, and cronbach's alpha (α) that the study has mentioned it. The cronbach's alpha (α) value = .901 was greater than 0.7, eigenvalue = 3.582, and cumulative value had a total = 71.631% which show that was essential underlying factor for this construct. According to all specifications, the research can concluded that that the reliability and internal consistency of the factor were acceptable. (See Table 4.6)

 Table 4.6 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on Electronic

 word of mouth

Research Construct	Research Items	Factor Loading	Eigen- value	Cumulative Explained	Item-to- total correlation	Cronbach 's Alpha (α)
) 3)	EWOM1	.810	3.582	71.631%	.705	0.901
rd of = 0.89	EWOM2	.866			.779	
W0I MO	EWOM3	.882			.804	
ronic h (K	EWOM4	.850			.757	
Electi Mout	EWOM5	.821			.720	

Note: EWOM = Electronic Word of Mouth

Source: Original Study

4.2.5 Subjective Norm (SN)

To check the factor loading and reliability of subjective norm this research used seven questionnaires by a test to get the result. And the result of items were greater than the requirement research has mentioned. Table 4.7 indicate the result of KMO = 0.902 was greater than 0.5; cronbach's alpha (α) value = 0.897 was greater than 0.7; eigenvalue = 4.337. The subjective norm had a cumulated explain total of 61.955% which express that was valuable underlying factor for this construct. According to all specifications, the research can concluded that the reliability and internal consistency of the factor were acceptable. (See Table 4.7)

Research t Items	Factor Loading	Eigen- value	Cumulative Explained	Item-to- total correlation	Cronbach' s Alpha (α)
SN1	.765	4.337	61.955%	.672	0.897
SN2	.813	-		.731	
SN3	.827	-		.748	
SN4	.812	-		.727	
SN5	.796			.709	
SN6	.749	2	~	.660	
SN7	.743		10	.653	
	Research ItemsSN1SN2SN3SN4SN5SN6SN7	Research ItemsFactor LoadingSN1.765SN2.813SN3.827SN4.812SN5.796SN6.749SN7.743	Research ItemsFactor LoadingEigen- valueSN1.7654.337SN2.813.827SN3.827.812SN4.812SN5.796SN6.749SN7.743	AResearch ItemsFactor LoadingEigen- valueCumulative ExplainedSN1.7654.33761.955%SN2.813.827SN3.827.812SN4.812SN5.796SN6.749SN7.743	AResearch ItemsFactor LoadingEigen- valueCumulative ExplainedItem-to- total correlationSN1.7654.33761.955%.672SN2.813.731.731SN3.827.748SN4.812.727SN5.796.709SN6.749.653

Table 4.7 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on Subjective

Norm

Note: SN = Subjective Norm

Source: Original Study

4.2.6 Financial Risk (FR)

After running factor loading of Financial Risk (FR), there is only factor showed up on the result. This study used three questionnaires of financial risk to analyze the factor loading and reliability test. Table 4.8 show the results of factor loading, eigenvalue, cumulative explained, item to total correlation, and the cronbach's alpha (α). All the questionnaires has factor loading higher than 0.7, and the KMO value of financial risk = 0.718 was greater than 0.5; eigenvalue = 4.425, and cronbach's alpha (α) value = 0.817 was higher than 0.7. The cumulated of financial risk had a total 73.20%, which mean that these were necessary underlying factor for this construct. Base on all the criteria, the research can concluded that the reliability and internal consistency of the factor were acceptable. (See Table 4.8)

Table 4.8 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on Financial

Research Construct	Research Items	Factor Loading	Eigen- value	Cumulative Explained	Item-to- total correlation	Cronbach's Alpha (α)
ial () ()	FR1	.849	2.196	73.207%	.659	0.817
nand Risk MC 718	FR2	.857			.672	
Fir 1 (K 0	FR3	.860			.676	

Risk

Note: FR= Financial Risk

Source: Original Study

4.2.7 Privacy Risk (PVR)

In table 4.9 showed the result of factor loading and reliability of Privacy Risk (PVR) to measure the four questionnaires in order to know the value of KMO, cronbach's alpha (α), eigenvalue, percentage of cumulative explained, and the item-total correlation. The crobach's alpha (α) of privacy risk value=0.850 was greater than 0.7, KMO value=0.817 was higher than 0.5. Moreover, the factor loading of all items were greater than requirement 0.6 which mean that all items had relationship with its construct. In doing so, the result of eigenvalue=2.759, and cumulative had a total 68.977% of explained which illustrated that was important underlying factor for this construct. Base on all the criteria, the research can concluded that concluded that the reliability and internal consistency of the factor were acceptable. (See Table 4.9)

Table 4.9 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on Privacy

Research Construct	Research Items	Factor Loading	Eigen- value	Cumulative Explained	Item-to- total correlation	Cronbach's Alpha (α)
\mathbf{c}	PVR1	.811	2.759	68.977%	.662	0.850
riva Risk MC .817	PVR2	.841			.704	
G R _ P	PVR3	.837			.699	
	PVR4	.832			.691	

Risk

Note: PVR= Privacy Risk

Source: Original Study

4.2.8 Behavioral Intention (BI)

The Behavioral Intention (BI) was measured by nine questionnaire items to check factor loading and reliability. Table 4.9 illustrates the results of factor loadings, eigenvalue, and the percentage of cumulative explained, item-to-total correlation, and cronbach's alpha (α). The KMO of behavioral intention has a value = 0.953 was higher than 0.5. All the items has factor loading bigger than 0.6 and the biggest is BI9 with factor loading of .849 which shows that this item had highest relationship with behavioral intention. On the other hand, cronbach's alpha (α) = .943 was greater than 0.7, eigenvalue = 6.178, and the behavioral intention had cumulated a total 68.645% of explained which indicates that was important underlying factor for this construct. Base on all the criteria, the research can concluded that concluded that the reliability and internal consistency of the factor were acceptable. (See Table 4.10)

Research Construct	Research Items	Factor Loading	Eigen- value	Cumulative Explained	Item-to- total correlation	Cronbach's Alpha (α)
	BI1	.824	6.178	68.645%	.773	0.943
ention 53)	BI2	.793			.736	
	BI3	.846			.800	
[nte 0.9	BI4	.831			.781	
[] lei	BI5	.832			.783	
Behavior (KMC	BI6	.820			.767	
	BI7	.828	-		.778	
	BI8	.833	de.	M	.784	
	BI9	.849	Sho.	-(1	.804	

Table 4.10 Result of Factor Loading analysis and Reliability test on

Behavioral Intention

Note: BI = Behavioral Intention

Source: Original Study

4.3 Independent Sample T-test

In this part aim to point out the differences between gender of male and female to compare its mean into the seven constructs that was mention above. The analysis was used the factor of perceived usefulness (PU), perceived ease of use (PEOU), attitude (ATT), electronic word of mouth (eWOM), subjective norm (SN), perceived risk (PR), and behavioral intention (BI). In addition, the level of significant and the t-value cannot be lower than 1.96 and p-value less than 0.05. Table 4.10 have indicated that there were no any p-value significant, and t-value were lower than 1.96. Therefore, independent sample t-test results illustrated that there were no differences between male and female. (See Table 4.11)

Factor	Male	Female	t-value	n-value	
ractor	N= 179	N = 171	t-varue	r and	
PU	6.2137	6.2281	.174	.886	
PEOU	6.2439	6.3086	.829	.408	
ATT	6.2039	6.1330	939	.348	
eWOM	6.0670	6.1602	1.249	.212	
SN	6.2115	6.2348	.306	.760	
PR	6.2283	6.2790	.657	.511	
BI	6.3532	6.4269	.896	.371	

Table 4.11 Result of Independent Sample T-test with Gender

Note: *p<0.05, **p<0.01, ***p<0.001

Source: Original Study

4.4 One-way Analysis of Variance ANOVA

The study used one way ANOVA method to analyze the different between more than two groups in order to know which group are the same or separated. This part was selected demographic of age, education level, income level, and frequencies of using internet per day to compare the mean of perceived usefulness (PU), perceived ease of use (PEOU), attitude (ATT), electronic word of mouth (eWOM), subjective norm (SN), perceived risk (PR), and behavioral intention (BI). The one-way ANOVA produces a one-way analysis of variance of a quantitative dependent variable by a single factor as known as an independent variable.

4.4.1 Ages

There were only one factor statistically significant within the seven constructs among the differences of age groups of Subjective Norm (SN)

checked with ANOVA, (F=5.830, p=0.001) is significant, checked with Levene=2.903, p=0.035, p<0.05) is significant, checked with Dunnett T3 where the group means (group (1)=6.3268, (2)=6.0529, (3)=5.7714, (4)=5.8367), group (1)>(2), there were significant difference between ages group 20-30 years old (Mean=6.3268) is higher than ages group 31-40 years old (Mean=6.0529). Perceived Usefulness (PU) checked with ANOVA, PU (F=3.777, p=.011, p<0.05) significant, checked with Levene=4.198, p=0.006, p<0.01) significant, checked with Dunnett T3 where the mean groups (group (1)=6.2790, (2)=6.1463, (3)=6.2125, (4)=5.3571) there were no significant difference between the ages group. Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU) checked with ANOVA, (F=1.949, p=0.121, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Levene=1.064, p=0.365, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Scheffe where the mean groups (group (1)=6.3381, (2)=6.1567, (3)=6.0000, (4)=6.2857), there were no statistically significant differences between ages group. Attitude (ATT) checked with ANOVA, (F=4.415, p=0.005, p<0.01) significant, checked with Levene=11.752, p=0.000, p<0.001 significant, checked with Dunnett T3 where the mean groups (group (1)=6.2135, (2)=6.1338, (3)=5.4125, (4)=6.2857) there were no statistically significant differences between ages group. Electronic word of mouth (eWOM) checked with ANOVA, (F=0.874, p=0.445, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Levene=3.119, p=0.026, p<0.05 significant, checked with Duunett T3 where the mean groups (group (1)=6.1339, (2)=6.0660, (3)=5.8400, (4)=6.2571) there were no statistically significant differences between ages group. Perceived Risk (PR) checked with ANOVA, (F=5.637, p=0.001) significant, checked with Levene=6.964, p=0.000, p<0.001 is significant, checked with Dunnett T3 where the mean groups (group (1)=6.2955, (2)=6.2700, (3)=5.5000, (4)=5.6735) there were no statistically significant differences between ages
group. Behavioral Intention (BI) checked with ANOVA, (F=3.753, p=0.011, p<0.05) significant, checked with Levene=2.411, p=0.067, p>0.05 not significant, checked with Scheffe where the mean groups (group (1)=6.4692, (2)=6.2833, (3)=5.9667, (4)=5.8413) there were no statistically significant differences between ages group. (See Table 4.12)

Factor	20-30 (1) N= 233	31-40 (2) N= 100	41-50 (3) N=10	Above 50 (4) N= 7	F-value	P- value	Scheffe or Dunnett T3
PU	6.2790	6.1463	6.2125	5.3571	3.777	.011	NS
PEOU	6.3381	6.1567	6.0000	6.2857	1.949	.121	NS
ATT	6.2135	6.1338	5.4125	6.2857	4.415	.005	NS
EWOM	6.1339	6.0660	5.8400	6.2571	0.874	.455	NS
SN	6.3268	6.0529	5.7714	5.8367	5.830	.001	(1) > (2)
PR	6.2955	6.2700	5.5000	5.6735	5.637	.001	NS
BI	6.4692	6.2833	5.9667	5.8413	3.753	.011	NS

Table 4.12 Results of One-way Analysis of Variance ANOVA of Age Groups

Note: *p<0.05, **p<0.01, ***p<0.001

Source: Original Study

4.4.2 Educational Level

There were three factors statistically significant within the seven constructs among the differences of educational level of Perceived Usefulness (PU) checked with ANOVA, PU (F=3.727, p=0.025, p<0.05) significant, checked with Levene=2.814, p=0.061, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Scheffe where the group means of educational level (group (1)=6.2898, (2)=6.1976, (3)=5.9360), group (1)>(3) there were significant difference between bachelor group (Mean=6.2898) is higher than ph.d group (Mean=5.9360). Subjective Norm (SN) checked with ANOVA, (F=9.899, p=0.000, p<0.001) significant, checked with Levene=2.318, p=0.100, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Scheffe where the means group of educational level (group (1)=6.3515, (2)=6.1048, (3)=5.8550), group (1)>(2)>(3) there

were significant difference between bachelor group, master group, and ph.d group, which the bachelor group is highest group (Mean=6.3515) and ph.d group is the lowest group (Mean=5.8550). Moreover, Behavioral Intention (BI) checked with ANOVA, (F=6.263, p=0.002, p<0.01) significant, checked with Levene=1.894, p=0.152, p>0.05 not significant, checked with Scheffe where the means group of educational level (group (1)=6.4935, (2)=6.3143, (3)=6.0623), group (1)>(3), there were significant difference between bachelor group (Mean=6.4935) is higher than ph.d group (Mean=6.0623). Beside these factors, Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU) checked with ANOVA, (F=2.034, p=0.132, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Levene=0.226, p=0.798, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Scheffe where the group means (group (1)=6.3399, (2)=6.2042, (3)=6.1382, there were no statistically significant differences between group means of education level. Attitude (ATT) checked with ANOVA, (F=4.068, p=0.018, p<0.05) significant, checked with Levene=3.465, p=0.032, p<0.05 significant, checked with Dunnett T3 where the means group (group (1)=6.2580, (2)=6.0643, (3)=5.9970), there were no statistically significant differences between group means of education level. Electronic word of mouth (eWOM) checked with ANOVA, (F=0.903, p=0.406, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Levene=2.369, p=0.095, p>0.05 not significant, checked with Scheffe where the means group (group (1)=6.1441, (2)=6.1010, (3)=5.9854), there were no statistically significant differences between group means of education level. Perceived Risk (PR) checked with ANOVA, (F=5.175, p=0.006, p<0.01) significant, checked with Levene=4.355, p=0.014, p<0.05 significant, checked with Dunnett T3 where the means group (group (1)=6.2950, (2)=6.2952, (3)=5.9164), there were no statisticallysignificant differences between group means of education level. (See Table 4.13)

Factor	Bachelor (1) N=204	Master (2) N= 105	Doctorate Ph.d (3) N=41	F- value	P-value	Scheffe or Dunnett T3
PU	6.2898	6.1976	5.9360	3.727	.025	(1) > (3)
PEOU	6.3399	6.2042	6.1382	2.034	.132	NS
ATT	6.2580	6.0643	5.9970	4.068	.018	NS
EWOM	6.1441	6.1010	5.9854	.903	.406	NS
SN	6.3515	6.1048	5.8850	9.899	.000	(1) > (2) > (3)
PR	6.2950	6.2952	5.9164	5.175	.006	NS
BI	6.4935	6.3143	6.0623	6.263	.002	(1) > (3)

Table 4.13 Result of One-way Analysis of Variance ANOVA of Education

Level

Note: *p<0.05, **p<0.01, ***p<0.001

Source: Original Study

4.4.3 Incomes Level

There were only two factors statistically significant within the seven constructs among the differences of incomes level of Subjective Norm (SN) and Behavioral Intention (BI). For Subjective Norm (SN) checked with ANOVA, (F=4.080, p=0.003, p<0.01) significant, checked with Levene=1.361, p=0.247, p>0.050 not significant, checked with Scheffe where the group means of incomes level (group (1)=6.4048, (2)=6.3361, (3)=6.3197, (4)=6.1289, (5)=6.0216), group (2)>(5) there were significant differences between the incomes group 310\$-400\$ (Mean=6.3361) is higher than group incomes over 610\$ (Mean=6.0216). Behavioral Intention (BI) checked with ANOVA, (F=3.077, p=0.016, p<0.05) significant, checked with Levene=2.003, p=0.94, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Scheffe where the group means of incomes level (group (1)=6.3968, (2)=6.5415, (3)=6.4524, (4)=6.3875, (5)= 6.1908), group (2)>(5) there were differences between incomes group 310\$-400\$ (Mean=6.5415) is higher than incomes group over 610\$ (Mean=6.1908).

Beside these factors, Perceived Usefulness (PU) checked with ANOVA, (F=1.587, p=0.177, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Levene=1.956, p=0.101, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Scheffe where the group means (group (1)=6.2143, (2)=6.2847, (3)=6.4107, (4)=6.0671, (5)=6.1356), therewere no statistically significant differences between group means of incomes group. Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU) checked with ANOVA, (F=1.302, p=0.269, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Levene=0.523, p=0.719, p>0.05 not significant, checked with Scheffe where the group means (group (1)=6.2672, (2)=6.3324, (3)=6.4127, (4)=6.0921, (5)=6.2317), there were no statistically significant differences between group means of incomes group. Moreover, Attitude (ATT) checked with ANOVA, (F=1.997, p=0.095, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Levene=2.088, p=0.082, p>0.05 not significant, checked with Scheffe where the group means (group (1)=6.2763, (2)=6.2605, (3)=6.2292, (4)=6.0000, (5)=6.060), there were no statistically significant differences between group means of incomes group. Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM) checked with ANOVA, (F=0.256, p=0.906, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Scheffe where the group means (group (1)=6.1667, (2)=6.1462,(3)=6.1048, (4)=6.0780, (5)=6.0698), there were no statistically significant differences between group means of incomes group. Perceived Risk (PR) checked with ANOVA, (F=0.731, p=0.571, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Levene=1.810, p=0.126, p>0.05 not significant, checked with Scheffe where the group means (group (1)=6.2687, (2)=6.3049, (3)=6.3129, (4)=6.2787, (5)=6.1550), there were no statistically significant differences between group means of incomes group. (See Table 4.14)

Factor	\$200- \$300/ Per month (1) N= 42	\$310- \$400/ Per month (2) N= 119	\$410- \$500/ Per month (3) N= 42	\$510- \$600/ per month (4) N= 41	Over \$610/ per month (5) N=106	F- value	P- value	Scheffe or Dunnett T3
PU	6.2143	6.2847	6.4107	6.0671	6.1356	1.587	.177	NS
PEOU	6.2672	6.3324	6.4127	6.0921	6.2317	1.302	.269	NS
ATT	6.2763	6.2605	6.2292	6.0000	6.0660	1.997	.095	NS
EWOM	6.1667	6.1462	6.1048	6.0780	6.0698	.256	.906	NS
SN	6.4048	6.3361	6.3197	6.1289	6.0216	4.080	.003	(2) > (5)
PR	6.2687	6.3049	6.3129	6.2787	6.1550	.731	.571	NS
BI	6.3968	6.5415	6.4524	6.3875	6.1908	3.077	.016	(2) > (5)

Table 4.14 Result of One Way ANOVA of Incomes Level

Note: *p<0.05, **p<0.01, ***p<0.001

Source: Original Study

4.4.4 Frequencies of Using Internet

There were no factors statistically significant within the seven constructs among the differences of frequencies of using internet per day. First, Perceived Usefulness (PU) checked with ANOVA, (F=3.446, p=0.017, p<0.05) significant, checked with Levene=6.673, p=0.000, p<0.001 significant, checked with Dunnett T3 where the group means (group (1)=5.5750, (2)=6.3136, (3)=6.0724, (4)=6.2885), there were no statistically significant differences between group means of frequencies of using internet. Second, Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU) checked with ANOVA, (F=0.743, p=0.527, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Levene=2.046, p=0.107, p>0.05 not significant, checked Scheffe where the group mean (group (1)=5.8444, (2)=6.2815, (3)=6.2471, (4)=6.3130), there were no statistically significant differences between group means of frequencies of using internet. Third, Attitude (ATT) checked with ANOVA, (F=1.858, p=0.136, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Levene=4.904, p=0.002, p<0.01 significant, checked

with Dunnett T3 where the group means (group (1)=5.7250, (2)=6.2836, (3)=6.0876, (4)=6.1677), there were no statistically significant differences between group means of frequencies of using internet. Fourth, Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM) checked with ANOVA, (F=0.610, p=0.609, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Levene=4.690, p=0.003, p<0.01 significant, checked with Dunnett T3 where the group means (group (1)=5.7600, (2)=6.0898, (3)=6.1570, (4)=6.1100), there were no statistically significant differences between group means of frequencies of using internet. Fifth, Subjective Norm (SN) checked with ANOVA, (F=5.119, p=0.002, p<0.01) significant, checked with Levene=9.751, p=0.000, p<0.001 significant, checked with Dunnett T3 where the group means (group (1)=5.0286, (2)=6.2119, (3)=6.2790, (4)=6.233),there were no statistically significant differences between group means of frequencies of using internet. Sixth, Perceived Risk (PR) checked with ANOVA, (F=1.003, p=0.392, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Levene=2.383, p=0.069, p>0.05 not significant, checked Scheffe where the group means (group (1)=5.7714, (2)=6.2143, (3)=6.2762, (4)=6.2924), there were no statistically significant differences between group means of frequencies of using internet. Lastly, Behavioral Intention (BI) checked with ANOVA, (F=1.740, p=0.159, p>0.05) not significant, checked with Levene=3.142, p=0.025, p<0.05 significant, checked with Dunnett T3 where the group means (group (1)=5.7778, (2)=6.4426, (3)=6.3115, (4)=6.4315), there were no statistically significant differences between group means of frequencies of using internet. (See Table 4.15)

Factor	Under 1 hour/per day (1) N= 5	1-2 hours/per day (2) N= 118	2-3 hours/per day (3) N= 107	Over 3 hours/per day (4) N= 120	F- value	P- value	Scheffe or Dunnett T3
PU	5.5750	6.3136	6.0724	6.2885	3.446	.017	NS
PEOU	5.8444	6.2815	6.2471	6.3130	.743	.527	NS
ATT	5.7250	6.2638	6.0876	6.1677	1.858	.136	NS
EWOM	5.7600	6.0898	6.1570	6.1100	.610	.609	NS
SN	5.0286	6.2119	6.2790	6.2333	5.119	.002	NS
PR	5.7714	6.2143	6.2762	6.2924	1.003	.392	NS
BI	5.7778	6.4426	6.3115	6.4315	1.740	.159	NS

Table 4.15 Result of One Way ANOVA of Frequencies of Using Internet

Note: *p<0.05, **p<0.01, ***p<0.001

Source: Original Study

4.5 The Relationship Among the Constructs

This research followed Beneth and Health (2000), the method use to check the mediation and moderation effect of the variables. To analyze the hypotheses, and the relationship among the seven constructs, the data analysis was conducted using SPSS, version 21. Table 4.15 will show the descriptive statistics and bivariate correlations among the variables.

4.5.1 The Relationship Among the Seven Constructs

In this part, the highest mean was behavioral intention (6.3892) with a standard deviation of 0.768, while lowest mean was electronic word of mouth (6.1126) with standard deviation of 0.698. The correlation coefficients can help to indicate the bivariate relationships among the seven variables. Based on the correlation analysis of each variable it can be shown that 6 variables were significantly positively correlated with one another. Except 2 variables of attitude, and subjective norm were not significant correlated each other (r=0.081, p>0.05). Firstly, this research talk about the relationship among the

variables used for testing the hypothesis; with perceived usefulness are significantly positively correlated with the variable of behavioral intention (r=0.311, p<0.01), and significantly positively correlated with perceived ease of use (r=0.569, p<0.01), also significantly positively correlated with attitude (r=0.401, p<0.01), while attitude also found to be significantly correlated with behavioral intention (r=0.277, p<0.01). Electronic word of mouth are significantly positively correlated with behavioral intention (r=0.277, p<0.01). Electronic word of mouth are significantly positively correlated with behavioral intention (r=0.281, p<0.01), and significantly positively correlated with subjective norm (r=0.214, p<0.01), while subjective norm also found to be significantly positively correlated with behavioral intention (r=0.295, p<0.01). Perceived risk is significantly positively correlated with behavioral intention (r=0.343, p<0.01). Second, this research found that the strongest relationship among the 7 variable is perceived usefulness and perceived ease of use (r=0.569, p<0.01). (See Table 4.16)

Table 4.16 Results of the Correlation of the Seven Constructs

Variable	Mean	SD	PU	PEOU	ATT	EWOM	SN	PR	BI
PU	6.2207	.770	1		0	2	1		
PEOU	6.2756	.729	.569**	1		02 11			
ATT	6.1693	.705	.401**	.182**	-10	× //			
EWOM	6.1126	.698	.107*	.144**	.249**	1			
SN	6.2229	.710	.152**	.316**	.081	.214**	1		
PR	6.2531	.721	.237**	.312**	.224**	.429**	.478**	1	
BI	6.3892	.768	.311**	.403**	.277**	.281**	.295**	.343**	1
Nata 1	* < 05	**** < 0	1 ***	001	Comme	aamalat	ian aaaf	Tiaiant	

Note: 1. p<.05, p<.01, p<.001, r= Sample correlation coefficient

 2. PU= Perceived Usefulness, PEOU= Perceived Ease of Use, ATT= Attitude, EWOM= Electronic Word of Mouth, SN= Subjective Norm, PR= Perceived Risk, BI= Behavioral Intention
 Source: Original Study

4.5.2 The Mediation Effect of Attitude between Perceived Usefulness and Behavioral Intention

In this research, was following the method specified by Beneth and Health (2000), there are four steps to test the mediation effect of the variables: firstly to evaluating how the mediator has been in a significant relationship with the independent variable; secondly to test that whether there is significantly relationship between the independent variable and the dependent variable; thirdly to put together a test to examine whether the mediator is significantly in the relationship with the dependent variable; finally to found that there are any the mediating between the mediator with the independent-dependent variables relationship. (See Table 4.17)

Table 4.17 Mediation Test of Attitude between Perceived Usefulness and

Variables	ATT	- JE	BI	
variables	Model1	Model2	Model3	Model4
PU	.401***	.311***	2	.181***
ATT			.277***	.238***
R	.401	.311	.277	.353
\mathbb{R}^2	.161	.097	.077	.124
Adj-R ²	.159	.094	.074	.119
F-Value	66.872	37.291	28.873	24.625
P-Value	.000	.000	.000	.000
D-W	2.197	1.957	2.045	2.137
Max VIF	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.192

Behavioral Intention

Note: *p<.05, **p<.01, ***p<.001

PU= Perceived Usefulness, ATT= Attitude, BI= Behavioral Intention Source: Original Study

In table 4.17 indicated that the model 1 tested the relationship between perceived usefulness (independent variable) and attitude (mediator), and the result show that behavioral intention is significant and positively affected perceived usefulness (β =.401, p<0.001), model 2 tested the relationship between perceived usefulness as the (independent variable) and behavioral intention as the (dependent variable), and the result showed that perceived usefulness is significant and positively affected to behavioral intention (β =.311, p < 0.001), then model 3 to check the relationship between attitude is the independent variable and behavioral intention (dependent variable), and the result showed that independent variable of attitude is significant and positively affected to behavioral intention (β =.277, p<0.001), thus hypothesis H1, H2, and H3 was supported. Finally, the equation of perceived usefulness and attitude regressed to behavioral intention (β =.181, p<0.001; β =.238, p<0.001). The results in model 4 showed that $R^2 = 0.124$ and the adjusted $R^2 = 0.119$, meaning that 11.90% of the variance in behavioral intention can be predicted from perceived usefulness and attitude. F-value equals 24.625 (p<0.001) is significant. For multicollinearity, max VIF is 1.192.

According to the results above, the beta value of behavioral intention is reduced from $\beta = 0.311$ to $\beta = 0.181$, and both perceived usefulness and attitude are significantly related to behavioral intention. Therefore, H4 is supported. Behavioral intention provides a partial mediation effect on the relationship between perceived usefulness and attitude. (See Figure 4.1)



Figure 4.1 Mediation Effect of Attitude on the relationship between Perceived-Usefulness and Behavioral Intention

Source: Original Study

The research forward used Preacher and Hayes's (2004), suggestions to investigate the indirect effect and adopted the Sobel test and the bootstrap approach confidence intervals (CIs) to support mediating effects. In table 4.17 shown that there are 4 step of the mediation model, step 1 the regression of perceived usefulness on behavioral intention, ignoring the mediator, was significant, $\beta=0.3105$, t(348)=6.1066, p=0.000. Step 2 indicated that the regression of perceived usefulness on the mediator, attitude was also significant, β =0.3678, t (348) =8.1775, p=0.000. Step 3 of the mediation process showed that the mediator (attitude), controlling for perceived usefulness, was significant, β =0.1973, t (347) =3.3012, p=0.001. Step 4 of the analyses revealed that the mediator (attitude), controlling for perceived usefulness was also a significant predictor of behavioral intention, β =0.2380, t (347) =4.3465, p=0.000. The results of the Sobel test are significant (p=0.000). The z-value equals to 3.0417, which is higher than 1.96 (p < 0.05), and the value of mediating effect is 0.0726. It indicates that attitude factors partially mediated the relationship between perceived usefulness and behavioral intention. The study is used the bootstrap approach to verify the Sobel test. The result shows CIs

between 95% and 5% (excluding 0) reaches significant levels. Thus, the results also showed that attitude was an indirect effect on behavioral intention. (See Table 4.18)

Table 4.18 Regression Analysis of the Indirect Effect between Attitude and

Direct effects	and Tota	l effect					
			β	SE	t	р	
IV -> DV			.3105	.0509	6.1066	.000	
IV -> MV			.3678	.0450	8.1775	.000	
MV -> DV, I	V is contr	olled	.1973	.0598	3.3012	.001	
IV -> DV, M	V is contr	olled	.2380	.0548	4.3465	.000	
Indirect effect	t and sign	ificant usi	ng the normal	distribution			
	Value	SE	LL95%CI	UL95%CI	Z	р	
Sobel	0.0726	.0239	.0258	.1193	3.0417	.002	
Bootstrap results for the indirect effect							
	Value	SE	LL95%CI	UL95%CI	Mean		
Effect	0.0726	.0411	.0028	.1653	.0717		

Behavioral Intention

Note. 1. IV= Independent variable (Perceived Usefulness), DV= Dependent variable (Behavioral Intention), MV= Mediating variable (Attitude), β=Unstandardized Coefficient
 2. N= 350, Number of Bootstrap Resamples= 1000, LL= Lower Limit,

CI= Confidence Interval, UL= Upper Limit

Source: Original Study

4.5.3 The Mediation Effect of Attitude between Perceived Ease of Use and Behavioral Intention

According to table 4.18 indicated that the model 1 tested the relationship between perceived ease of use (independent variable) and attitude (mediator), and the result show that behavioral intention is significant and positively affected Perceived Ease of Use (β =.182, p<0.001), model 2 a test as the relationship between Perceived Ease of Use as the (independent variable) and Behavioral Intention as the (dependent variable), and the result showed that Perceived Ease of Use is significant and positively affected to Behavioral Intention (β =.403, p<0.001), then model 3 to check the relationship between Attitude is the independent variable and Behavioral Intention (dependent variable), and the result showed that independent variable of Attitude is significant and positively affected to Behavioral Intention (β =.277, p<0.001), thus hypothesis H5, H6, and H3 was supported. Finally, the equation of Perceived Ease of Use and Attitude regressed to Behavioral Intention (β =.211, p<0.001; β =.365, p<0.001). The results in model 4 showed that R²= 0.205 and the adjusted R²= 0.201, meaning that 20.10% of the variance in Behavioral Intention can be predicted from Perceived Ease of Use and Attitude. F-value equals 44.811 (p<0.001) is significant. For multicollinearity, max VIF is 1.034.

According to the results above, the β value of Behavioral Intention is reduced from $\beta = 0.403$ to $\beta = 0.211$, and both Perceived Ease of Use and Attitude are significantly related to Behavioral Intention. Therefore, H7 is supported. Behavioral Intention provides a partial mediation effect on the relationship between Perceived Ease of Use and Attitude. (See Table 4.19)

Variablas	ATT		BI	
variables	Model1	Model2	Model3	Model4
PEOU	.182***	.403***		.211***
ATT			.277***	.365***
R	.182	.403	.277	.453
R ²	.033	.162	.077	.205
Adj-R ²	.030	.160	.074	.201
F-Value	11.881	67.477	28.873	44.811
P-Value	.001	.000	.000	.000
D-W	2.146	1.881	2.045	2.140
Max VIF	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.034

Table 4.19 Mediation Test of Attitude between Perceived Ease of Use and Behavioral Intention

Note: 1. *p<0.5, **p<0.01, ***p<0.001

2. PEOU= Perceived Ease of Use, ATT= Attitude, BI= Behavioral Intention

Source: Original Study

Figure 4.2 Mediation Effect of Attitude on the relationship between

Perceived Ease of Use and Behavioral Intention



Source: Original Study

According to Preacher and Hayes's (2004), as shown in table 4.19, in step 1 the regression of Perceived Ease of Use on Behavioral Intention, ignoring the mediator, was significant, $\beta = 0.4248$, t(348)=8.2144, p=0.000. Step 2 illustrated that the regression of Perceived Ease of Use on the mediator, Attitude was also significant, β =0.1757, t (348) =3.4468, p=0.000. Step 3 of the mediation process showed that the mediator (Attitude), controlling for Perceived Ease of Use, was significant, β =0.2294, t (347) =4.3256, p=0.000. Step 4 of the analyses revealed that the mediator (Attitude), controlling for Perceived Ease of Use was also a significant predictor of Behavioral Intention, β =0.3845, t (347) =7.4948, p=0.000. The results of the Sobel test are significant (p=0.000). The z-value=2.6527, which is higher than 1.96 (p<0.05), and the value of mediating effect is 0.0403. It expressed that Attitude factors partially mediated the relationship between Perceived Ease of Use and Behavioral Intention. The study further used the bootstrap approach to verify the Sobel test. The result reveals CIs between 95% and 5% (excluding 0) reaches significant levels. Therefore, the results also showed that Attitude was an indirect effect on Behavioral Intention. (See Table 4.20)

Table 4.20 Regression Analysis of the Indirect Effect between Attitude and

Direct effects and Total effect						
			β	SE	t	р
IV -> DV			.4248	.0517	8.2144	.000
IV -> MV			.1757	.0510	3.4468	.000
MV -> DV	, IV is con	trolled	.2294	.0530	4.3256	.000
IV -> DV,	MV is con	trolled	.3845	.0513	7.4948	.000
Indirect effect	ct and signi	ficant usi	ng the norma	l distribution		
	Value	SE	LL95%CI	UL95%CI	Ζ	р
Sobel	0.0403	.0152	.0105	.0701	2.6527	.008
Bootstrap	results for	the indire	ect effect			
	Value	SE	LL95%CI	UL95%CI	Mean	
Effect	0.0403	.0289	.0028	.1117	.0405	

Behavioral Intention

Note. 1. IV= Independent variable (Perceived Ease of Use), DV= Dependent variable (Behavioral Intention), MV= Mediating variable (Attitude),

β=Unstandardized Coefficient

2. N= 350, Number of Bootstrap Resamples= 1000, LL= Lower Limit,

CI= Confidence Interval, UL= Upper Limit

Source: Original Study

4.5.4 The Mediation Effect of Electronic Word of Mouth between Attitude and Behavioral Intention

Base on table 4.20 showed that the model 1 tested the relationship between attitude (independent variable) and eWOM (mediator), and the result show that behavioral intention is significant and positively affected to eWOM (β =.249, p<0.001), model 2 a test as the relationship between attitude as the (independent variable) and behavioral intention as the (dependent variable), and the result showed that attitude is significant and positively affected to behavioral intention (β =.227, p<0.001), then model 3 to check the relationship between eWOM is the independent variable and behavioral intention (dependent variable), and the result showed that independent variable of eWOM is significant and positively affected to behavioral intention (β =.281, p<0.001), thus hypothesis H8, H9, and H3 was supported. Finally, the equation of attitude and eWOM regressed to behavioral intention (β =.226, p<0.001; β =.221, p<0.001). The results in model 4 showed that R²= 0.353 and the adjusted R²= 0.125, meaning that 12.50% of the variance in behavioral intention can be predicted from attitude and eWOM. F-value equals to 24.719 (p<0.001) is significant. For multicollinearity, max VIF is 1.066.

According to the results above, the beta value of behavioral intention is reduced from β =0.249 to β =0.226, and both attitude and eWOM are significantly related to behavioral intention. Therefore, H10 is supported. Behavioral intention provides a partial mediation effect on the relationship between attitude and eWOM. (See Table 4.21)

Variables	EWOM		BI	
variables	Model1	Model2	Model3	Model4
ATT	.249***	.277***	1	.226***
EWOM			.281***	.221***
R	.249	.277	.281	.353
\mathbb{R}^2	.062	.077	.079	.125
Adj-R ²	.059	.074	.076	.120
F-Value	22.910	28.873	29.883	24.719
P-Value	.000	.000	.000	.000
D-W	2.163	2.045	1.795	2.061
Max VIF	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.066
		where .0.001		

Table 4.21 Mediation Test of eWOM between Attitude and Behavioral

Intention

Note: 1. *p<0.5, **p<0.01, ***p<0.001

Note (continued): 2. ATT= Attitude, EWOM= Electronic word of Mouth, BI= Behavioral Intention

Source: Original Study

Figure 4.3 Mediation Effect of eWOM on the relationship between



Source: Original Study

To following Preacher and Hayes's (2004), as shown in table 4.21, in step 1 the regression of attitude on behavioral intention, ignoring the mediator, was significant, β =0.3016, t(348)=5.3734, p=0.000. Step 2 illustrated that the regression of attitude on the mediator, attitude was also significant, $\beta=0.2460$, t (348) =4.7864, p=0.000. Step 3 of the mediation process showed that the mediator (eWOM), controlling for attitude, was significant, β =0.2493, t (347) =4.3665, p=0.000. Step 4 of the analyses revealed that the mediator (eWOM), controlling for attitude was also a significant predictor of behavioral intention, β =0.2403, t (347) =4.2530, p=0.000. The results of the Sobel test are significant (p=0.000). The z-value=3.1881, which is higher than 1.96 (p<0.05), and the value of mediating effect is 0.0613. It showed that eWOM factors partially mediated the relationship between attitude and behavioral intention. The study further used the bootstrap approach to verify the Sobel test. The result reveals CIs between 95% and 5% (excluding 0) reaches significant levels. Therefore, the results also showed that eWOM was an indirect effect on behavioral intention. (See Table 4.22)

Direct effects	s and Tot	tal effect	β	SE	t	р
IV -> DV			.3016	.0561	5.3734	.000
IV -> MV			.2460	.0514	4.7864	.000
MV -> DV, IV is controlled			.2493	.0571	4.3665	.000
IV -> DV, MV	is contr	olled	.2403	.0565	4.2530	.000
Indirect effect	and sign	ificant usi	ing the normal	l distribution		
	Value	SE	LL95%CI	UL95%CI	Z	р
Sobel	0.0613	.0192	.0236	.0990	3.1881	.001
Bootstrap resul	lts for th	e indirect	effect			
	Value	SE	LL95%CI	UL95%CI	Mean	
Effect	0.0613	.0409	.0002	.1580	.0599	

Table 4.22 Regression Analysis of the Indirect Effect between eWOM and

Note. 1. IV= Independent variable (Attitude), DV= Dependent variable

(Behavioral Intention), MV= Mediating variable (eWOM),

β=Unstandardized Coefficient

2. N= 350, Number of Bootstrap Resamples= 1000, LL= Lower Limit,

CI= Confidence Interval, UL= Upper Limit

Source: Original Study

4.5.5 The Moderation Effect of Subjective Norm on The Relationship Between Attitude and Behavioral Intention

To analyze the moderation effect of the research variable, this study adopted Beneth and Health (2000). According to Beneth and Health (2000), moderation analysis can be conducted to assess if the moderator moderates the relationship between the independent and dependent variables. As shown in model 1, the result specify that subjective norm is positively and significantly affected to behavioral intention (β =0.295, p<0.001). Model 2 identified that attitude is positively and significantly affected to behavioral intention (β =0.277, p<0.001), thus, H11 is supported. As shown in model 3 in the Table 4-23, the result showed that both independent variables (attitude, β =0.255, p<0.001) and moderating variables (subjective norm, β =0.275, p<0.001) are significantly affected to dependent variable (behavioral intention). In addition, the result in model 4 indicated that revealed the interaction effect (R²=167, β =0.124, p<0.001, max VIF= 1.004) of attitude and subjective norm is significantly affect to behavioral intention, it shows that the interaction between subjective norm and attitude utilizes a moderating effect on behavioral intention, so H12 is supported. This meant that subjective norm is a moderator of the relationship between attitude and behavioral intention. (See Table 4.23) Table 4.23 The Moderation Effect of Subjective Norm on The Relationship

Variable	BI				
	Model1	Model2	Model3	Mode4	
Independent Variable	SIE		tolio		
ATT	.277***	2/2	.255***	.259***	
Moderating Variable	-				
SN	<i></i>	.295***	.275***	.281***	
Interactive Effect	(133)	1	&~//		
ATT*SN		憲	5//	.124**	
R	.277	.295	.389	.408	
\mathbb{R}^2	.077	.087	.152	.167	
Adjust R ²	.074	.085	.147	.160	
F-Value	28.873	33.213	30.983	23.085	

Between Attitude and Behavioral Intention

Note: 1. *p<0.5, **p<0.01, ***p<0.001

2. ATT= Attitude, SN= Subjective Norm, BI= Behavioral Intention Source: Original Study



Figure 4.4 The Moderation Effect of Subjective Norm on The Relationship Between Attitude and Behavioral Intention

Source: Original Study

4.5.6 The Moderation Effect of Perceived Risk on The Relationship Between Attitude and Behavioral Intention

To analyze the moderation effect of the research variable, As shown in model 1, the result showed that attitude is positively and significantly affected to behavioral intention (β =0.277, p<0.001). Model 2 identified that perceived risk is positively and significantly affected to behavioral intention (β =0.343, p<0.001), thus, H113 is supported. As shown in model 3 in the Table 4-23, the result showed that both independent variables (attitude, β =0.211, p<0.001) and moderating variables (perceived risk, β =0.296, p<0.001) are significantly affected to dependent variable (behavioral intention). Furthermore, the result in model 4 reported the interaction effect (R²=.163, β =0.066, p>0.5, max VIF= 1.143) of attitude and perceived risk not significant affect to behavioral intention, it indicates that there are not interaction between perceived risk and attitude as moderating effect on behavioral intention, so H12 is not supported. This means that perceived risk is not a moderator of the relationship between attitude and behavioral intention. (See Table 4.24)

BI Variable Model1 Model2 Model3 Mode4 Independent Variable .277*** ATT .211*** .228*** Moderating Variable .307*** PR 343*** .296*** **Interactive Effect** ATT*PR .066 .277 .343 .399 .404 R \mathbb{R}^2 .077 .117 .160 .163 Adjust R² .074 .155 .115 .156 **F-Value** 46.315 28.873 32.940 22.526

 Table 4.24 The Moderation Effect of Perceived Risk on The Relationship

 Between Attitude and Behavioral Intention

Note: 1. *p<0.5, **p<0.01, ***p<0.001

2. ATT= Attitude, PR= Perceived Risk, BI= Behavioral Intention

Source: Original Study

Figure 4.5 The Moderation Effect of Perceived Risk on The Relationship



Between Attitude and Behavioral Intention

Source: Original Study

CHAPTER FIVE

CONCLUSIONS AND SUGGESTIONS

5.1 Research Conclusion

Table 5.1 Result of the Tested Hypotheses

Hypotheses		Results	
H1	There is a significant effect between perceived usefulness	Supported	
	and its behavioral intention.	Supported	
H2	There is a significant effect between perceived usefulness	Supported	
	and its attitude.		
H3	There is a significant effect attitude and behavioral	Supported	
	Intention.		
H4	Attitude mediates the relationship between perceived	Supported	
	usefulness and its behavioral intention.	Supported	
Н5	There is a significant effect between perceived ease of use	Supported	
	and its behavioral Intention.		
H6	There is a significant effect between perceived ease of us	Supported	
	its attitude.	Supported	
H7	Attitude mediates the relationship between perceived ease	Supported	
	of use and its behavioral intention.		
H8	There is a significant effect between attitude and its	Supported	
	electronic word of mouth (eWOM).		
Н9	There is a significant effect between electronic word of	of Supported	
	mouth (eWOM) and its behavioral intention.		
H10	Electronic word of mouth (eWOM) mediates the		
	relationship between attitude and its behavioral intention.	Supported	

H11There is a significant between perceived risk and its behavioral intention.SupportedH12Perceived risk moderates the relationship between attitude and its behavioral intention.Not SupportedH13There is a significant effect between subjective norm and its behavioral intention.SupportedH14Subjective norm moderates the relationship between attitude and behavioral intention.Supported			
H12Perceived risk moderates the relationship between attitude and its behavioral intention.Not SupportedH13There is a significant effect between subjective norm and its behavioral intention.SupportedH14Subjective norm moderates the relationship between attitude and behavioral intention.Supported	H11	There is a significant between perceived risk and its behavioral intention.	Supported
H13There is a significant effect between subjective norm and its behavioral intention.SupportedH14Subjective norm moderates the relationship between attitude and behavioral intention.Supported	H12	Perceived risk moderates the relationship between attitude and its behavioral intention.	Not Supported
H14 Subjective norm moderates the relationship between attitude and behavioral intention. Supported	H13	There is a significant effect between subjective norm and its behavioral intention.	Supported
	H14	Subjective norm moderates the relationship between attitude and behavioral intention.	Supported

Table 5.1 Result of the Tested Hypotheses (continued)

Source: Original Study

The purpose of this study are; (i) to examine the effect between Perceived Usefulness and Behavioral Intention, (ii) to investigate the effect between Perceived Ease of Use and behavioral intention, (iii) to investigate the effect between Attitude and Perceived Usefulness are in relationship, (vi) to check how Attitude mediates the relation between Perceived Usefulness and its Behavioral Intention, (v) to explain the effect between Perceived Ease of Use and its Attitude, (vi) to discover how attitude mediates the relation between Perceived Ease of Use and Behavioral Intention, (vii) to analyze the effect between Attitude and Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM), (viii) to study the effect between Electronic Word of Mouth (eWOM) mediates the relation between Attitude and its Behavioral Intention, (xi) to point out the effect between Perceived Risk and Behavioral Intention, (xii) to test how Perceived Risk moderates the relation between Attitude and Behavioral Intention, (xiii) to understand the effect between Subjective Norm and Behavioral Intention, (xiii) (xvi) to inspect how Subjective Norm moderates the relation between Attitude and Behavioral Intention.

Base on theoretical framework development and literature review from chapter 2 and chapter 3, result of this research have found that perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use, attitude, electronic word of mouth (eWOM), subjective norm, and perceived risk are the factors that drove the user behavior to had intention on electronic payment (E-payment) as the result of table 5.1 above which show the supported of all hypotheses.

According to the result that the research has tested, perceived usefulness is significant effect on behavioral intention, supported previous finding of Kwasi (2007); Riskinanto et al. (2017); Ashraf et al. (2016) where perceived usefulness are significantly affect behavioral intention. The research indicated that the very useful payment system will attract the intention of the user to adopt it for their daily life.

The study also showed that perceived usefulness is significantly effect on attitude, which is the same study of Jahangir and Begum (2008); Joo and Sang (2013); Persico, Manca, and Pozzi (2014), so it is show that the user have positive thinking on the useful of new payment system. On the other hand, this test also indicated attitude to be significant impacted on behavioral intention as well, Kim et al. (2013) analyze supported this finding by illustrate that consumer's consider the useful and the benefit of the new system they obtain from the new technology and push them decided to use e-payment.

Guriting and Ndubisi (2006); Dwivedi et al. (2008), also conclude that perceived ease of use significant influence on behavioral intention, same as this study. It indicates that the consumer was trying to use a new technology of electronic payment because it is very easy to use. In addition as the result from this study perceived ease of use also significant associated to attitude, which has been supported by Agag and Masry (2016), it's expressed that every an easy and convenience of new system is to be taken into user intention.

The study of Jahangir and Begum (2008), Kanchanatanee et al. (2014), and Riskinanto et al. (2017), indicated that perceived ease of use was significant effect on attitude, and the result have the same with this study. It's show that when the user use e-payment they feel that it is convenience to use and not trying to understand the way of using, moreover, they feel that their performance is productivity, so the degree of satisfaction of using will be increased and higher.

According to the study of Casalo et al. (2011); Ayeh et al. (2013); and Ladhari and Michaud (2015), were found that attitude was significant associated on electronic word of mouth. It is also the same result of this study. It is showed that when the user sees the good information about new technology they fell that it is very convenience, and take it into their consideration.

Electronic word of mouth also recovered that significantly effect on behavioral intention confirming the previous study of Jalilvand and Samiei (2012); Tsao et al. (2015); expressed that not only to sees the information about the e-payment they have intention to use also, and the consumer will share it to their friends in order to help them know this convenience payment as well.

This study found that subjective norm is significant effect on behavioral intention, it is the same result of previous study by Lu et al. (2005); Hidayanto et al. (2015), it's mean that families, friends, social media were effected on the user intention. When the user get a good ideas of new technology of their payment from their family or friends, especially the social media it will make them intent to adopt e-payment.

The study of Yang et al. (2011); Hidayanto et al. (2015); Barkhordari et al. (2016); were showed that perceived risk was significant effected on

behavioral intention, this study found there was no moderating effect of perceived risk between attitude and behavioral intention. It's expressed that even though the people they worries about the risk but they still have intention to adopt the e-payment.

As shown from the result of mediating effect of attitude and electronic word of mouth (eWOM) to behavioral intention, the mediation were found to be significant. The test show that when the attitude entered itself, the effect of perceived usefulness and behavioral intention were significantly reused. So, when it happened, the effect of perceived usefulness were mediated through the attitude. This finding also supported by Kanchanatanee et al. (2014), which confirmed that intention to use a particular system depends on the personal satisfaction and perception. In doing so, from the analysis test, it showed that attitude provided a partial mediation effect because the impact of perceived usefulness to behavioral intention significantly reduced but still higher than zero. The second mediation the result was supported by Agag and Masry (2016), was indicated that when attitude entered itself, the effect of perceived ease of use and behavioral intention were significant reused. Thus when it happened, the effect of perceived ease of use were mediated through the attitude. In this sense, when the user realize the new system of e-payment is easy to use they would like to adopted it for their payment (Ayeh, Au & Law., 2013). On the other hand, from the analysis test, illustrated that attitude offered a partial mediation effect because the influence of perceived ease of use to behavioral intention significantly reduced and still higher than zero. Lastly, according to Casalo et al. 2011; Ayeh et al. (2013), was showed that when the electronic word of mouth (eWOM) entered itself, the effect of attitude and behavioral intention was significantly reused. Therefore, when it happened, the effect of attitude was mediated through the electronic word of mouth (eWOM).

According to Hamouda and Tabbane, (2013), their result also supported as same as the result of this study, which confirmed that the consumer would like to go online in search for more suggestion and opinion, and that suggestion and opinion will impact on their intention to use e-payment. In addition, from the test, it's showed that electronic word of mouth gave the partial mediation effect because the result of attitude to behavioral intention is significantly reduced but still higher than zero.

This study found that subjective norm had a moderation effect on the relationship between attitude and behavioral intention. It is the same result of Kim et al. (2013), it is also supported by Shan and King (2015), and it means that the reason for user realizes subjective norm is likely to help them obtain a positive attitude toward behavior from the effect of the behavioral intention.

The result of this study also showed that perceived risk had a moderation effect on the relationship between attitude and behavioral intention. It is also the same result of the study by Jarvenpaa, Tractinsky, and Vitale (2000); and also supported by Chio, Lee, and OK. (2013), it is showed that weak levels of risk perception toward an object increase the attitude orientation of a customer and their behavioral intention.

5.2 Research Discussion and Implication

The main purpose of this study aim to understand the impact of the variables of the acceptance of e-payment technology among Cambodian users, by adapting theory of Technology Acceptance Model (TAM) by Davis (1989), and Theory of Plan Behavior (TPB) implied by Ajzen (1985). In this study, we fund that all independent variables were being significant related to its dependent variables. First, the significant among perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use, attitude and behavioral intention have been shown in

chapter 4. Both of perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use have indirect effect on attitude and behavioral intention. In addition, if the new technology bring the user with usefulness, ease of use it would make a good thinking of user about intention to implement e-payment. At the same time, people are always seeking to get higher benefit with a new technology in order to make them more useful and easy of their payment everyday life. The result has been unchanging by the previous research by Kanchanatanee et al. (2014) confirmed that intention to use a particular system depends on the personal satisfaction and perception. Second, the significant among attitude, electronic word of mouth (eWOM) and behavioral intention have been indicated in the previous section. Attitude have indirect effect on eWOM and behavioral intention. As the matter of fact, when the user gains a good information about new payment system through the internet they would have positive felling with this beneficially technology. The result shows some more perception to previous study (Zarrad & Debabi., 2015) where they found that user trust in eWOM because it is reliable information. It is represents that the opinion-based information that often within both the opinions and recommendations of other user. Thirdly, the significant of moderation effect among attitude, subjective norm and behavioral intention, as the subjective norm is a moderator effect of the relationship between attitude and behavioral intention. The result dependable to previous study of Shan and King (2015) where they found that the ideas of other people were influent on the user intention because when their family, friends or other people around them have shared the same idea about a good payment method, they would be decided to engage with it. Finally, the significant finding of moderator effect among attitude, perceived risk and behavioral intention. Perceived risk is significantly effect on attitude and behavioral intention. As same as the result of the previous study by Chio, Lee,

and OK. (2013) where they were found that beside of the user decided to adopt the modern payment method, they would be concerned with some obstacles about the risk while they are using this new technology because it is a new trend for Cambodian people. For example, the user afraid that they will lost their money or their personal information is provided to other people without their permission.

In the conclusion of this study we suggest that the developer of epayment in Cambodia should, firstly, as the developer of e-payment system, the new technology that they build need to be careful on technique and option in order to provide the user be convenience and satisfy of this system. Furthermore, all the information that provided to the user must be clearly and reliable, especially the information that related to the system of using epayment. Because it is very important for people who want to know how to use the kind of modern system in their payment method when they want to pay through the internet or transfer their money. On the other hands, as the developer need to be honest and ensure that all the information of the user must be keep in private and safely for them in order to make the user feel comfortable of their transaction.

5.3 Research Limitation and Future Research Suggestion

There are some limitations while we are doing research. Firstly, due to the hard of time period conducted the survey; also, the sample choice for this study is mainly based on convenience. Therefore, the result slightly cannot be exemplification the whole of e-payment user in Cambodia. Thus, the future research should be done with large number of participation and differentiations group of people in order to get more information to analyze the data. Secondly, the results was come from the universities students and those who had employed in both private and public sector, so it opens up for any further research to apply this model framework to analyze the effect of perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use, attitude, eWOM, subjective norm, perceived risk, and behavioral intention of university student and those who are employed in Cambodia. Thirdly, it because of the limit of the time of this study only identifies the significant effect of both mediators and moderators, therefore, for future research should be compared to whether which one is more evaluative than the others, also a positive and negative effect of the mediators and moderators to give more deeply understanding to the study. Finally, a qualitative of study might allow the respondents to shows their idea on the intention to adopt e-payment in order to understanding the problems.



REFERENCES

- Adams, D.A., Nelson, R.R., & Todd, P.A. (1992), Perceived Usefulness, Ease Of Use, And Usage Of Information Technology, <u>A Replication. MIS</u> <u>Quarterly</u>, Vol. 16, No. 2, pp. 227-247.
- Adamson I, Shine J. (2003), Extending The New Technology Acceptance Model To Measure The End User Information Systems Satisfaction In A Mandatory Environment, <u>A Bank's Treasury Technol Anal Strat Manage</u>, Vol. 15, pp. 441-55.
- Agag, G., & El-Masry, A. (2016), Understanding The Determinants Of Hotel Booking Intentions And Moderating Role Of Habit, <u>International</u> <u>Journal Of Hospitality Management</u>, Vol. 54, pp.52-67.
- Ajzen, I. (1985), From Intentions To Actions: A Theory Of Planned Behavior. In J. Kuhl & J. Beckmann (Eds.), Action Control, <u>From</u> <u>Cognition To Behavior</u>, pp. 11-39.
- Ajzen, I. (1991), The theory of planned behavior. <u>Organizational Behavior</u> and Human Decision Processes, Vol. 50, pp. 179-211.
- Ajzen, I., & Fishbein, M. (1977), Attitude Behavior Relations: A Theoretical Analysis and Review of Empirical Research, <u>Psychology</u> <u>Bulletin</u>, Vol. 84, pp. 888-918.
- Ajzen, I., & Madden, T. (1986), Prediction Of Goal-Directed Behavior: Attitudes, Intentions, And Perceived Behavioral Control', <u>Journal of</u> <u>Experimental Social Psychology</u>, Vol. 22, No. 5, pp.453-474.
- Alalwan, A. A., Baabdullah, A. M., Rana, N. P., Tamilmani, K., & Dwivedi, Y. K. (2018), Examining Adoption of Mobile Internet in Saudi Arabia: Extending TAM with Perceived Enjoyment, Innovativeness and Trust, <u>Technology in Society</u>, Vol. 55, pp. 100-110.

- Anggar, R., B. K., & D.R.H. (2017), The Moderation Effect of Age on Adopting E-Payment Technology, <u>4th Information Systems International</u> <u>Conference</u>, pp. 6-8.
- Anggar, R., B. K., & Deliar, R.H. (2017), The Moderation Effect of Age on Adopting E-Payment Technology, <u>Procedia Computer Science</u>, Vol. 124, pp. 536-543.
- Ashraf, R. A., Thongpapanl, N. T., & Spyropoulou, S. (2016), The Connection and Disconnection between E-commerce Businesses and Their Customers: Exploring the Role of Engagement, Perceived Usefulness, and Perceived Ease-of-us, <u>Electronic Commerce Research</u> <u>and Applications</u>, pp. 1567-4223.
- Ayeh, J. K., Au, N., & Law, R. (2013), Predicting The Intention To Use Consumer Generated Media For Travel Planning, <u>Tourism Management</u>, Vol. 35, pp. 132-143.
- Baker, C.W., Little, T.D., & Brownell, K.D. (2003), Predicting Adolescent Eating And Activity Behaviors: The Role Of Social Norms And Personal Agency, <u>Health Psychology</u>, Vol. 22, No. 2, pp. 189-198.
- Barkhordari, M., Nourollah, Z., Mashayekhi, H., Mashayekhi, Y., & Ahangar, M. (2016), Factors Influencing Adoption Of E–Payment Systems: An Empirical Study On Iranian Customers, <u>Inf. Syst. e–Bus.</u> <u>Manag</u>, Vol. 14, No. 3, pp. 89-116.
- Bauer & Raymond. (1960), Consumer Behavior as Risk Taking, American <u>Marketing Association</u>, pp. 389-398.
- Bennett, J. A. and health (2000). "Mediator And Moderator Variables In Nursing Research: Conceptual And Statistical Differences", <u>Research in</u> <u>Nursing, Vol.</u> 23. No. 5, pp. 415-420.

- Berger, J. (2014), Word Of Mouth And Interpersonal Communication: A Review And Directions For Future Research, <u>J. Consum Psychol</u>, Vol. 24, pp. 586-607.
- Bhuyan, S. (2010), Do Consumers' Attitudes And Preferences Determine Their FAFH Behavior? An Application Of The Theory Of Planned Behavior, <u>Agribusiness</u>, Vol. 27, No. 2, pp. 205-220.
- Bruner, II.G.C. & Kumar, A. (2005), Explaining Consumer Acceptance of Handheld Internet Devices, <u>J Bus Res</u>, Vol. 58, No. 5, pp. 553-568.
- Carter, L., & Belanger, F. (2004), The Influence Of Perceived Characteristics Of Innovating On E-Government Adoption, <u>Electronic</u> <u>Journal of e-Government</u>, Vol. 2, No. 1, pp. 11-20.
- Casalo, L. V., Flavian, C., & Guinalíu, M. (2011), Understanding The Intention To Follow The Advice Obtained In An Online Travel Community, <u>Computers in Human Behavior</u>, Vol. 27, No. 2, pp. 622-633.
- Chandra, S., Srivastava, S., & Theng, Y. (2010), Evaluating The Role Of Trust In Consumer Adoption Of Mobile Payment Systems: An Empirical Analysis, <u>Communications of the Association for Information Systems</u>, Vol. 27, No. 1, pp. 561-588.
- Chang, H.H., & Chen, S.W. (2008), The Impact Of Online Store Environment Cues On Purchase Intention: Trust And Perceived Risk As A Mediator, <u>Online Information Review</u>, Vol. 32 No. 6, pp. 818-841.
- Chatterjee, P. (2001), Online Reviews: Do Consumers Use Them?, <u>Advances in Consumer Research</u>, Vol. 28 No. 1, pp. 129-133.
- Chau, P.Y.K., & Lai, V.S. (2003), An Empirical Investigation Of The Determinants Of User Acceptance Of Internet Banking, <u>J Organ Comp</u> <u>Electron Commer</u>, Vol. 13 No. 2, pp. 123-145.

- Chen, L. D., & Tan, J. (2004), Technology Adaptation In E-Commerce: Key Determinants Of Virtual Stores Acceptance, <u>European Management</u> <u>Journal</u>, Vol. 22, No. 1, pp. 74-86.
- Chen, L. D., & Tan, J. (2004), Technology Adaptation In E-Commerce: Key Determinants Of Virtual Stores Acceptance, <u>European Management</u> <u>Journal</u>, Vol. 22, No. 1, pp. 74-86.
- Chen, Y., & Xie, J. (2008), Online Consumer Review: Word-Of-Mouth As A New Element Of Marketing Communication Mix, <u>Management</u> <u>Science</u>, Vol. 54, No. 3, pp. 477-91.
- Cheng, S., Lam, T., & Hsu, C.H.C. (2005), Testing The Sufficiency Of The Theory Of Planned Behavior: A Case Of Customer Dissatisfaction Responses In Restaurants, <u>International Journal of Hospitality</u> <u>Management</u>, Vol. 24, No. 4, pp. 475-492.
- Cheng, X., & Zhou, M. (2010), Study On Effect Of E Adams, D.A., Nelson, R.R., And Todd, P.A. "Perceived Usefulness, Ease Of Use, And Usage Of Information Technology: A Replication", <u>MIS Quarterly</u>, Vol. 16, No. 2, pp. 227-247.
- Cheung, C. M., & Lee, M. K. (2012), What Drives Consumers To Spread Electronic Word Of Mouth In Online Consumer-Opinion Platforms?, <u>Decision Support Systems</u>, Vol. 53, pp. 218-225.
- Cheung, C., Xiao, B., & Liu, I.L. (2012), The Impact Of Observational Learning And Electronic Word Of Mouth On Consumer Purchase Decisions: The Moderating Role Of Consumer Expertise And Consumer Involvement, <u>45th Hawaii International Conference on System Sciences</u>, pp. 3228-3237.

- Cheung, C.M.K., & Thadani, D.R. (2012), The Impact Of Electronic Word-Of-Mouth Communication: A Literature Analysis And Integrative Model, <u>Decision Support Systems</u>, Vol. 54, No. 1, pp. 461-470.
- Chiou, J.-S. (1998), "The Effects of Attitudes, Subjective Norms, and Perceived Behavioral Control on Consumers' Purchase Intentions: The Moderating Effects of Product Knowledge and Attention to Social Comparison Information", <u>National Science Council</u>, Vol. 9, No. 2, pp. 298-308.
- 35. Chiu, C.M., Wang, E.T.G., Fang, Y.H., & Huang, H.Y. (2012), Understanding Customers' Repeat Purchase Intentions In B2C E-Commerce: The Roles Of Utilitarian Value, Hedonic Value And Perceived Risk, <u>Info Systems J</u>, Vol. 24, pp. 85-114.
- Choi, J., Lee, A., & Ok, C. (2013), The Effects Of Consumers' Perceived Risk And Benefit On Attitude And Behavioral Intention: A Study Of Street Food, <u>Journal of Travel & Tourism Marketing</u>, Vol. 30, No. 3, pp. 222-237.
- Chopdar, P.K., Korfiatis, N., Sivakumar, V.J., and LytrasMobile, M.D. (2018), Shopping Apps Adoption and Perceived Risks: A Cross-Country Perspective Utilizing the Unified Theory of Acceptance and Use of Technology, <u>Computers in Human Behavior</u>. Vol. 86, pp.109-128.
- Conner, M., Norman, P., Bell, R., (2002), The Theory Of Planned Behavior And Healthy Eating, <u>Health Psychology</u>, Vol. 21, No. 2, pp. 194-201.
- Crespo, A.H., Bosque, I.R., & del García de los Salmones Sánchez, M.M.G. (2009), The Influence Of Perceived Risk On Internet Shopping Behavior: A Multidimensional Perspective, <u>Journal of Risk Research</u>, Vol. 12, No. 2, pp. 259-277.
- Cunningham, S.M. (1967), The Major Dimensions of Perceived Risk. In: Risk Taking and Information Handling in Consumer Behavior, <u>Cox, D.F.</u> (ed.) pp. 64-82.
- Dasgupta, S., Granger, M., & McGarry, N. (2002), User Acceptance Of E-Collaboration Technology: An Extension Of The Technology Acceptance Model, <u>Group Decision and Negotiation</u>, Vol. 11, pp. 87-100.
- 42. Davis. (1989), "Perceived Usefulness, Perceived Ease Of Use, And User Acceptance Of Information Technology, Vol. 13, No. 3, pp. 319-340.
- Dwivedi, Y. K., & Williams, M. D., Weerakkody, V., Lal, B., & Bhatt, S. (2008), Understanding Factors Affecting Consumer Adoption of Broadband in India, Journal of Cases on Information Technology, Vol. 10, No. 3, pp. 35-47.
- Eelkaseh, A. M., Wong, K. W., & Fung, C. C. (2016), Perceived Ease Of Use Nd Perceived Usefulness Of Social Media For E-Learning In Libyan High Education: A Structural Equation Modeling Analysis, <u>International</u> <u>Journal of International and Education Technology</u>, Vol. 6, No. 3, p. 192.
- 45. Fang, Y.-H. (2014), Beyond The Credibility Of Electronic Word Of Mouth: Exploring Ewom Adoption On Social Networking Sites From Affective And Curiosity Perspectives, <u>International Journal of Electronic</u> <u>Commerce</u>, Vol. 18, pp. 67-102.
- Fathema, N. (2013), Structural Equation Modeling (SEM) of an Extended Technology Acceptance Model (TAM) to Report Web Technology Adoption Behavior In Higher Education Institutions, <u>Auburn University</u>, <u>Auburn, AL, United States</u>, Vol. 11, No. 2, pp. 210-227.
- 47. Fathema, N., Shannon, D., & Ross, M. (2015), Expanding the Technology Acceptance Model (TAM) to Examine Faculty Use of Learning

Management Systems (LMSs) in Higher Education Institutions, <u>Journal of</u> <u>Online Learning & Teaching</u>, Vol. 11, No. 2, pp. 210-232.

- Fazil, A.R.W., & Ejaz, A. (2016), Investigating the Influence of the Most Commonly Used External Variables of TAM on Students' Perceived Ease of Use (PEOU) and Perceived Usefulness (PU) of E-portfolios, <u>Computers</u> <u>in Human Behavior</u>, Vol. 63, pp. 75-90.
- Featherman, M.S., & Pavlou, P.A. (2003), Predicting E-Services Adoption: A Perceived Risk Facets Perspective, <u>Int J Hum Comput Stud</u>. Vol. 59, No. 4, pp. 51-74.
- Finlay, K. A., Trafimow, D., & Moroi, E. (1999), The Importance of Subjective Norms on Intentions to Perform Health Behaviors, <u>Journal of</u> <u>Applied Social Psychology</u>, Vol. 29, No. 11, pp. 2381-2393.
- Fishbein M., & Ajzen I. (1977), Belief, Attitude, Intention and Behavior: An Introduction to Theory and Research, <u>Journal of Business</u>, Vol. 5, pp. 177-189.
- Floyd, M. F., Gibson, H., Pennington-Gray, L., & Thapa, B. (2003), The Effect Of Risk Perceptions On Intentions To Travel In The Aftermath Of September 11, 2001, Journal of Travel & Tourism Marketing, Vol. 15, No. 2–3, pp. 19-38.
- Godes, D., & Mayzlin, D. (2004), Using Online Conversations To Study Word-Of-Mouth Communication, <u>Marketing Science</u>, Vol. 23 No. 4, pp. 45-60.
- 54. Gomaa, A., & Ahmed, A.E.M. (2016), Understanding The Determinants Of Hotel Booking Intentions Andmoderating Role Of Habit, <u>International</u> <u>Journal of Hospitality Management</u>, Vol. 54, pp. 52-67.
- 55. Gruen, T.W., Osmonbekov, T., & Czaplewski, A.J. (2006), EWOM: The Impact of Customer-Tocustomer Online Know-How Exchange On

Customer Value And Loyalty, <u>Journal of Business Research</u>, Vol. 59 No. 4, pp. 49-56.

- Hamouda, M., & Tabbane, R.S. (2013), Impact of Electronic Word of Mouth Evaluation on Purchase Intention: The Mediating Role of Attitude Toward the Product, <u>International Journal of Online Marketing</u>, Vol. 3, No. 2, pp. 20-37.
- Hidayanto, A.N., Hidayat, L.S., Sandhyaduhita, P.I., & Handayani, P.W. (2015), Examining The Relationship Of Payment System Characteristics And Behavioral Intention In E-Payment Adoption: A Case Of Indonesia, <u>Int. J. Business Information Systems</u>, Vol. 19, No. 1, pp. 58-86.
- Hsu, C.L., & Lu, H.P. (2004), Why Do People Play On-Line Game(S)? An Extended TAM with Social Influences And Flow Experience, <u>Inform</u> <u>Manage</u>, Vol. 41, No. 7, pp. 53-68.
- Huang L., Lu M-T., & Wong, B.K. (2003), The Impact Of Power Distance On Email Acceptance: Evidence from The PRC, <u>J Comp Inform Syst</u>, Vol. 44, No. 1, pp. 93-101.
- Jalilvand, R.M., & Samiei, N. (2012), The Impact Of Electronic Word Of Mouth On A Tourism Destination Choice, <u>Internet Research</u>, Vol. 22 No. 5, pp. 591-612.
- Jarvenpaa, S. L., Tractinsky, N., & Vitale, M. (2000), Consumer Trust In An Internet Store. <u>Information Technology and Management</u>, Vol. 1, No. 1-2, pp. 45-71.
- Joo, J., & Sang, Y. (2013), Exploring Koreans' Smartphone Usage: An Integrated Model Of The Technology Acceptance Model And Uses And Gratifications Theory, <u>Computers in Human Behavior</u>, Vol. 29, No. 6, pp. 2512-2518.

- Julian K. Ayeh; Norman Au and Rob Law. (2013), Predicting The Intention To Use Consumer-Generated Media For Travel Planning, <u>Tourism Management</u>, Vol. 35, pp.132-143.
- Kanchanatanee, K.N.S., & Anu, J. (2014), Effects of Attitude Toward Using, Perceived Usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use and Perceived Compatibility on Intention to Use E-Marketing. <u>Journal of Management</u> <u>Research</u>, Vol. 6, No. 3, pp. 1941-899.
- Khalifa, M., Liu, V. (2007), Online Consumer Retention: Contingent Effects of Online Shopping Habit and Online Shopping Experience, <u>Eur.</u> J. Inform. System, Vol. 16, No. 6, pp. 780-792.
- Kiecker, P., & Cowles, D. (2001), Interpersonal Communication and Personal Influence on the Internet: A Framework for Examining Online Word-of-Mouth, <u>Internet Applications in Euromarketing</u>, Vol. 11, No. 2, pp. 71-88.
- Kim, C., Mirusmonov, M., & Lee, I. (2010), An Empirical Examination of Factors Influencing the Intention to Use Mobile Payment, <u>Computers</u> <u>in Human Behavior</u>, Vol. 26, pp. 310-322.
- Kim, E., Ham, S., Yang, I.S., & Choi, J.G. (2013), The Roles Of Attitude, Subjective Norm, And Perceived Behavioral Control In The Formation Of Consumers' Behavioral Intentions To Read Menu Labels In The Restaurant Industry, <u>International Journal of Hospitality Management</u>, Vol. 35, pp. 203-213.
- Kim, S. B., Sun, K. A., & Kim, D. Y. (2013), The Influence Of Consumer Value-Based Factors On Attitude-Behavioral Intention In Social Commerce: The Differences Between High- And Low Technology Experience Groups, Journal of Travel & Tourism Marketing, Vol. 30, No. 1-2, pp. 108-125.

- 70. Kim, Y., Park & Choi, J. (2017), A Study on The Adoption of Iot Smart Home Service: Using Value-based Adoption Mode, <u>Total Quality</u> <u>Management & Business</u>, Vol. 28, No. 9-10, pp. 1149-1165.
- Kuisma T, Laukkanen T, Hiltunen M. (2007), Mapping the Reasons For Resistance To Internet Banking: A Means-End Approach, <u>Int J Inform</u> <u>Manage</u>, Vol. 27, No. 2, pp. 75-85.
- 72. Kwasi, A.G. (2007), Perceived Usefulness, User Involvement and Behavioral Intention: An Empirical Study Of ERP Implementation, <u>Computers in Human Behavior</u>, Vol. 23, pp. 1232-1248.
- Lee, M.-C. (2009), Factors Influencing The Adoption Of Internet Banking: An Integration Of TAM And TPB With Perceived Risk And Perceived Benefit. Electron, <u>Commer. Res. Appl</u>, Vol. 8, No. 3, pp. 130-141.
- Lee, S.-F., Tsai, Y.C., & Jih, W.J. (2006), "An Empirical Examination of Customer Perceptions of Mobile Advertising", <u>Information Resources</u> <u>Management Journals</u>, Vol. 19, No. 4, pp. 39-55.
- Lee, Y., Kozar, K. A., & Larsen, K. R. T. (2003), The Technology Acceptance Model: Past, Present, And Future, <u>Communication of the</u> <u>Association for Information Systems</u>, Vol. 12, pp. 752-780.
- Lim, Y.J., Osmanb, A., Salahuddinc, S.N., Romled, A.R., & Abdullahe, S. (2015), Factors Influencing Online Shopping Behavior: The Mediating Role of Purchase Intention, <u>Procardia Economics and Finance</u>, Vol. 35, pp. 401-410.
- Lin, T.M.Y., Luarn, P., & Huang, Y.K. (2011), "Effect of Internet Book Reviews on Purchase Intention: a focus group study", <u>The Journal of</u> <u>Academic Librarianship</u>, Vol. 31 No. 5, pp. 461-8.

- Lin, W-B. (2008), Investigation On The Model Of Consumers' Perceived Risk Integrated Viewpoint, <u>Expert System Appl</u>, Vol. 34, No. 1, pp. 977-88.
- Liu, I. F., Chen, M. C., Sun, Y. S., Wible, D., & Kuo, C. H. (2010), Extending The TAM Model to Explore the Factors that Affect Intention to Use an Online Learning Community, <u>Computers & Education</u>, Vol. 54, No. 2, pp. 600-610.
- Lu, J., Yao, J., & Yu, C. (2005), 'Personal Innovativeness, Social Influences And Adoption Of Wireless Internet Services Via Mobile Technology', <u>The Journal of Strategic Information Systems</u>, Vol. 14, No. 3, pp. 245-268.
- Manning & Mark. (2009), "The Effects of Subjective Norms on Behavior in the Theory of Planned Behavior: A meta-analysis, <u>British Journal of</u> <u>Social Psychology</u>, Vol. 48, pp. 649-705.
- Marija Ham, M. J., & Anita. F. (2015), The Role Of Subjective Norms In Forming The Intention To Purchase Green Food, <u>Economic Research</u> <u>Ekonomska Istraživanja</u>, Vol. 28, No. 1, pp. 738-748.
- Mathieson, K. (1991), Predicting User Intentions: Comparing the Technology Acceptance Model with the Theory of Planned Behavior, <u>Information Systems Research</u>, Vol. 2, pp. 173-191.
- Mauricio, S. F., Anthony, D. M., & David, E. S. (2010), Reducing Online Privacy Risk To Facilitate E-Service Adoption: The Influence Of Perceived Ease Of Use And Corporate Credibility, <u>Journal of Services</u> <u>Marketing</u>, Vol. 24, No. 3, pp. 219-229.
- Moon, J. W., & Kin, Y. G. (2001), Extending the TAM for a World-Wide-Web context, <u>Information & Management</u>, Vol. 32, No. 2, pp. 215-229.

- Mortazavi, M., Rahim Esfidani., & Shaemi Barzoki. (2014), "Influencing VSN Users' Purchase Intentions", <u>Journal of Research in Interactiv</u> <u>Marketing</u>, Vol. 8, No. 2, pp. 102-123.
- Munoz-Leiva, F., Hernandez-Mendez, J., & Sanchez-Fernandez, J. (2012), Generalising User Behaviour In Online Travel Sites Through The Travel 2.0 Website Acceptance Model, <u>Online Information Review</u>, Vol. 36, No. 6, pp. 879-902.
- 88. Nadim, J.N.B. (2008), The Role Of Perceived Usefulness, Perceived Ease Of Use, Security And Privacy, And Customer Attitude To Engender Customer Adaptation In The Context Of Electronic Banking, <u>African</u> <u>Journal of Business Management</u>, Vol. 2, No. 1, pp. 032-040.
- Nguyen, T.D., & Huynh, P.A. (2017), The Roles of Perceived Risk and Trust on E–Payment Adoption, <u>Springer International Publishing AG</u>, pp. 927-940.
- Park, D.-H., Lee, J., & Han, I. (2007), The effect of on-line consumer reviews on consumer purchasing intention: the moderating role of involvement, <u>International Journal of Electronic Commerce</u>, Vol. 11, No. 4, pp. 125-148.
- Park, E., & Kim, K. J. (2014), An Integrated Adoption Model of Mobile Cloud Services: Exploration of Key Determinants and Extension of Technology Acceptance Model, <u>Telematics and Informatics</u>, Vol. 31, No. 3, pp. 376-385.
- 92. Parsons, J. T., Siegel, A. W., & Cousins, J. H. (1997), Late Adolescent Risk-Taking: Effects Of Perceived Benefits And Perceived Risks On Behavioral Intentions And Behavioral Change, <u>Journal of Adolescence</u>, Vol. 20, No. 4, pp. 381-392.

- 93. Payne, N., Jones, F., & Harris, P. (2005), The Impact Of Job Strain On The Predictive Validity Of The Theory Of Planned Behavior: An Investigation Of Exercise And Healthy Eating, <u>British Journal of Health</u> <u>Psychology</u>, Vol. 10, No. 1, pp. 115-131.
- 94. Persico, D., Manca, S., & Pozzi, F. (2014), Adapting The Technology Acceptance Model To Evaluate The Innovative Potential Of E-Learning Systems, Computers in Human Behavior, Vol. 30, pp. 614-622.
- Petrus, G., & Nelson, O.N. (2006), Borneo Online Banking: Evaluating Customer Perceptions and Behavioral Intention, <u>Management Research</u> <u>News</u>, Vol. 29, No. 1-2, pp. 6-15.
- 96. Plummer, J.T. (2007), "Editorial: Word of Mouth, A New Advertising Discipline?", Journal of Advertising Research, Vol. 47, No. 4, pp. 385-86.
- Prendergast, G., Ko, D., & Yuen, S. Y. V. (2010), Online Word Of Mouth And Consumer Purchase Intentions, <u>International Journal of Advertising</u>, Vol. 29, N. 5, pp. 687-708.
- 98. Ramayah, T., & Ignatius, J. (2005), <u>Impact Of Perceived Usefulness</u>, <u>Perceived Ease of Use and Perceived Enjoyment on Intention To Shop</u> <u>Online</u>, pp. 1-16.
- Rauniar, R., Rawski, G., Yang, J., & Johnson, B. (2014), Technology Acceptance Model (TAM) and Social Media Usage: an Empirical Study on Facebook, <u>Journal of Enterprise Information Management</u>, Vol. 27, No. 1, pp. 6-30.
- 100. Riadh Ladhari and Mélissa Michaud. (2015), Ewom Effects on Hotel Booking Intentions, Attitudes, Trust, and Website Perceptions, International Journal of Hospitality Management, Vol. 46, pp. 36-45.

- 101. Riskinanto, A., Kelana, B., & Hilmawan, D.R. (2017), The Moderation Effect of Age on Adopting E-Payment Technology, <u>Procardia Computer</u> <u>Science</u>, Vol, 124, pp. 536-543.
- 102. See-To, E.W.K., & Ho, K.K.W. (2014), Value Co-Creation And Purchase Intention In Social Network Sites: The Role Of Electronic Word-Of-Mouth And Trust- A Theoretical Analysis, <u>Computers in Human</u> <u>Behavior</u>, Vol. 31, No. 1, pp. 182-189.
- 103. Shan, Y., & King, K.W. (2015), The Effects of Interpersonal Tie Strength and Subjective Norms on Consumers' Brand-Related eWOM Referral Intentions, <u>Journal of Interactive Advertising</u>, Vol. 15, No. 1, pp. 16-27.
- 104. Shih, H. P. (2004), An Empirical Study On Predicting User Acceptance Of E-Shopping On The Web. <u>Information & Management</u>, Vol. 41, pp. 351-368.
- 105. Soares, A.M., Pinho, J.C., & Nobre, H. (2012), "From Social To Marketing Interactions: The Role Of Social Networks", <u>Journal of</u> <u>Transnational Management</u>, Vol. 17, No. 1, pp. 45-62.
- 106. Sparks, P., Hedderley, D., & Shepherd, R. (1992), An Investigation Into The Relationship Between Perceived Control, Attitude Variability And The Consumption Of Two Common Foods, <u>European Journal of Social</u> <u>Psychology</u>, Vol. 22, No. 1, pp. 55-71.
- 107. Suh B, Han I. (2002), Effect Of Trust On Customer Acceptance Of Internet Banking, <u>Electronic. Commer. Res. Appl</u>, Vol. 1, No. 3-4, pp. 247-263.
- 108. Suki, N.M. (2011), Exploring The Relationship Between Perceived Usefulness, Perceived Ease Of Use, Perceived Enjoyment, Attitude And Subscribers' Intention Towards Using 3g Mobile Services, <u>Journal of</u> <u>Information Technology Management</u>, Vol XXII, No 1, pp. 1042-1319.

- 109. Sussman, R., & Gifford, R. (2018), Causality in the Theory of Planned Behavior, <u>Personality and Social Psychology Bulletin</u>, pp. 1-14.
- 110. Taylor, S., & Todd, P. (1995), Assessing IT Usage: The Role Of Prior Experience', <u>MIS Quarterly</u>, Vol. 19, No. 4, pp.561-570.
- 111. Tella, A., & Olasina, G. (2014), Predicting Users' Continuance Intention Toward E-payment System: An Extension of the Technolog Acceptance Model, <u>International Journal of Information Systems and Social Change</u>, Vol. 5, No. 1, pp. 47-67.
- 112. Tham, A., Croy, G., & Mair, J. (2013), Social Media in Destination Choice: Distinctive Electronic Word-of-Mouth Dimensions, <u>Journal of</u> <u>Travel & Tourism Marketing</u>, Vol. 30, No. 1-2, pp. 144-155.
- 113. Thurau, H.T., Gwinner, K.P., Walsh, G., & Gremler, D.D. (2004), Electronic Word-Ofmouth Via Consumer-Opinion Platforms: What Motivates Consumers To Articulate Themselves On The Internet?, Journal of Interactive M He, Fang and Peter Mykytyn, Vol. 18, pp. 38-52.
- 114. Tony, D.S., & Aljoza, M. (2015), Individual Acceptance of e-Government Services in a Developing Country: Dimensions of Perceived Usefulness and Perceived Ease of Use and the Importance of Trust and Social Influence, <u>Procardia Computer Science</u>, Vol. 72, pp. 622-629.
- 115. Tsaoa, W.-C., Hsiehb, M.-T., Shihc, L.-W., & Lin, T.M.Y. (2015), Compliance with eWOM: The Influence Of Hotel Reviews on Booking Intention From the Perspective of Consumer Conformity, <u>International</u> <u>Journal of Hospitality Management</u>, Vol. 46, pp. 99-111.
- 116. Tzeng, J. (2011), Perceived Values And Prospective User's Acceptance Of Prospective Technology: The Case of A Career E-Portfolio System, <u>Computers & Education</u>, Vol. 56, pp. 157-165.

- 117. Venkatesh, V., & Davis, F. D. (2000), A Theoretical Extension Of The Technology Acceptance Model: Four Longitudinal Field Studies, <u>Management Science</u>, Vol. 46, No. 2, pp. 186-204.
- 118. Wan, C., Shen, G. Q., & Choi, S. (2017), Experiential and Instrumental Attitudes: Interaction Effect of Attitude and Subjective Norm on Recycling Intention, <u>Journal of Environmental Psychology</u>, Vol. 50, pp. 69-79.
- 119. Wang, X., Yu, C., & Wei, Y. (2012), Social Media Peer Communication and Impacts On Purchase Intentions: A Consumer Socialization Framework, Journal of Interactive Marketing, Vol. 26, No. 4, pp. 198-208.
- 120. Wood, C.M. and Scheer, L.K. (1996), "Incorporating Perceived Risk Into Models Of Consumer Deal Assessment And Purchase Intent", <u>Advances</u> <u>in Consumer Research</u>, Vol. 23, pp. 399-406.
- 121. Workman, M. (2014), New Media And The Changing Face Of Information Technology Use: The Importance Of Task Pursuit, Social Influence, And Experience, <u>Computers in Human Behavior</u>, Vol. 31, pp. 111-117.
- 122. Wu, J.-H., & Wang, S.-C. (2005), What Drives Mobile Commerce? An Empirical Evaluation Of The Revised Technology Acceptance Model, <u>Information & Management</u>, Vol. 42, No. 5, pp. 719-729.
- 123. Xia, M., Zhang, Y., & Zhang, C. (2018), A TAM-Based Approach to Explore the Effect of Online Experience on Destination Image: a Smartphone User's Perspective, <u>Journal of Destination Marketing &</u> <u>Management</u>, Vol. 8, pp. 259-270.
- 124. Xiaofen, J., & Yiling, Z. (2009), The Impacts of Online Word-of-Mouth on Consumer's Buying Intention on Apparel: An empirical study. In Proceedings of the International Symposium on Web Information Systems

and Applications, <u>Proceedings of the 2009 International Symposium on</u> <u>Web Information Systems and Applications</u>, pp. 024-028.

- 125. Yang, S., Lu, Y., Gupta, S., Cao, Y. & Zhang, R. (2011), 'Mobile Payment Services Adoption Across Time: An Empirical Study Of The Effects Of Behavioral Beliefs, Social Influences, And Personal Traits', <u>Computers in</u> <u>Human Behavior</u>, Vol. 28, No. 1, pp.129-142.
- 126. Yang, Y., Liu, Y., Li, H., & Benhai, Y. (2015), "Understanding Perceived Risks in Mobile Payment Acceptance", <u>Industrial Management & Data</u> <u>Systems</u>, Vol. 115, No. 2, pp. 253-69.
- 127. Yousafzai, F., & Pallister. (2010), Explaining Internet Banking Behavior: Theory of Reasoned Action, Theory of Planned Behavior, or Technology Acceptance Model, <u>Journal of Applied Social Psychology</u>, Vol. 40, No. 5, pp. 1172-1202.
- 128. Yousafzai, S., Foxall, G. R., & Pallister, J. (2007), Technology Acceptance: A Meta-Analysis of the TAM. Part 1, <u>Journal of Modelling</u> <u>in Management</u>, Vol. 2, pp. 251-280.
- 129. Yu, H.-C., Hsi, H. K. and Kuo, P. J. (2002), "Electronic Payment Systems: An Analysis and Comparison of Types", <u>Technology in Society</u>, Vol. 24, No. 3, pp. 331-47.
- 130. Zarrad, H., & Debabi, M. (2015), Analyzing the Effect of Electronic Word Of Mouth on Tourists' Attitude toward Destination and Travel Intention, <u>International Research Journal of Social Sciences</u>, Vol. 4, No. 4, pp. 53-60.

APPENDIX QUESTIONNAIRE

Thank you for accepting to answer this survey. The survey is being done by master students of the Department of Business Administration at Nanhua University, Taiwan. The purpose of the survey is to collect the opinions of people or employees currently employed by firms or other institutions to whom are willing to use an electronic payment system (E-payment). These questions are purely opinion based and there is no right or wrong answer. This survey data is use to reported for this research only.

You will be asked to rate how each statement illustrate your feeling about the statements. The answers will ranged from strongly disagree (1), disagree (2), partially disagree (3) neutral (4), partially agree (5), agree (6), strongly agree (7). You will take about 20 minutes to complete the questionnaire.

ស្វមអរគុណចំពោះការយល់ព្រមទទួលយកការស្វង់មតិនេះ។ ការស្វង់មតិនេះត្រូវបានធ្វើ ឡើងដោយនិស្សិតជំនាញ នៃនាយកដ្ឋានរដ្ឋបាលធុរកិច្ចនៅសាកលវិទ្យាល័យណានហ្វនៃកោះតៃ វ៉ាន់។ គោលបំណងនៃការស្វង់មតិនេះ គឺដើម្បីប្រមូលមតិយោបល់របស់មនុស្សឬនិយោជិកដែល កំពុងបម្រើការដោយក្រុមហ៊ុន ឬស្ថាប័នផ្សេងទៀតដែលពួកគេមានបំណងប្រើការទូទាត់តាម ប្រព័ន្ធអេឡិចត្រូនិច (E-payment) ។ សំណួរទាំងនេះគឺជាគំនិតសុទ្ធសាធដោយផ្អែកលើចម្លើយ ហើយមិនមានចម្លើយណាមួយត្រូវឬខុសឡើយ។ ទិន្នន័យស្វង់មតិនេះត្រូវបានប្រើដើម្បីរាយ ការណ៍អំពីការស្រាវជ្រាវនេះតែប៉ុណ្ណោះ។

អ្នកនឹងត្រូវបានស្នើសុំឱ្យវាយតម្លៃថា តើសេចក្តីថ្លែងការណ៍នីមួយៗបង្ហាញពីអារម្មណ៍ របស់អ្នកចំពោះសេចក្តីថ្លែងការណ៍នេះយ៉ាងដូចម្តេច។ ចម្លើយនឹងមានចាប់ពីការ មិនយល់ស្រប ទាល់តែសោះ (១) មិនយល់ស្រប (២) មិនយល់ស្របផ្នែកខ្លះ (៣) ធម្មតា (៤) យល់ស្របផ្នែកខ្លះ (៥) យល់ស្រប (៦) យល់ស្របខ្លាំង(៧)។ លោកអ្នកនឹងចំណាយពេលប្រហែល ២០ នាទីដើម្បីបំពេញ កម្រងសំណួរទាំងនេះ។

Sect	ion 1. Perceived usefulness យល់ឃើញ	m Levels of agreement						
ឋាមា	នប្រយោជន៍)	(កម្រិតនៃការយល់ស្រប)						
សូមពី យល់ ទៅពេ Plea belo usef agre on y	និត្យមើលសំណូរខាងក្រោមដែលពាក់ព័ន្ធនឹងការ ឃើញថាមានប្រយោជន៍ ហើយបន្ទាប់មកចូរគូររង្វង់ បីកម្រិតនីមួយៗខាងក្រោមផ្អែកលើគំនិតរបស់អ្នក។ se take a short look at the questions w related with the Perceived ulness , and then CIRCLE the level of ement on each of the items below base our opinion. (PU1) E-payment helps me be more	Strongly disagree (មិនយល់ស្របខ្លាំង)	Disagree (ອິຂយທ່ເ _ກ ິນປ)	Partially disagree (មិនយល់ស្របផ្ទៃកខ្លះ)	Neutral (agm)	Partially agree (យល់ស្របផ្ទៃកខ្លះ)	Agree (យល់ស្រប)	Strongly agree (យល់ស្របខ្លាំង)
1	effective. ការទូទាត់តាមអេឡិចត្រូនិកជួយឲ្យការទូទាត់របស់ខ្ញុំ កាន់តែមានប្រសិទ្ធភាព។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
2	(PU2) E-payment helps me be more productive. ការទូទាត់តាមអេឡិចត្រនិកជួយឲ្យការទូទាត់របស់ខ្ញុំ កាន់តែមានផលិតភាព។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
3	(PU3) E-payment gives me more control over the activities on my payment. ការទូទាត់តាមប្រព័ន្ធអេឡិចត្រូនិកផ្តល់ឱ្យខ្ញុំនូវការ គ្រប់គ្រងបន្ថែមលើសកម្មភាពទូទាត់របស់ខ្ញុំ។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
4	(PU4) E-payment help me to be easier to purchase the thing more quickly. ការទូទាត់តាមអេឡិចត្រូនិកជួយខ្ញុំឱ្យមានភាពងាយ ស្រួលក្នុងការទិញទំនិញបានលឿន។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
5	(PU5) E-payment saves me time when I use it. ការទូទាត់តាមប្រព័ន្ធអេឡិចត្រូនិកជួយសន្សំពេល អេលាឱ្យខ្ញុំពេលខ្ញុំប្រើវា។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
6	(PU6) E-payment would make it easier for me to carry out my tasks. ការទូទាត់តាមប្រព័ន្ធអេឡិចត្រនិកនឹងផ្តល់ភាពងាយ ស្រួលសម្រាប់ខ្ញុំក្នុងការអនុវត្តការងាររបស់ខ្ញុំ។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
7	(PU7) E-payment would allow me to complete my work more quickly. ការទូទាត់តាមអេឡិចត្រូនិកអាចជួយឱ្យខ្ញុំអាចបំពេញ ការកិច្ចរបស់ខ្ញុំបានលឿន។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7

8	(PU8) Generally, My payment through e-payment is very useful. សរុបសេចក្តីមកការទូទាត់តាមរយ:ការទូទាត់តាមអេ ឡិកត្រូនិកពិតជាមានប្រយោជន៍ណាស់។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Section	ion 2. Perceived Ease of Use (ការយល់			Levels	of agre	ement		
កយញ សមេរំ	នូវការជួងលេចចុះបុរ និងយើលសំហើរខាងក្រោមដែលពាក់ព័ន្ធនឹង			(
ការក	ល់មេបីបានវភាពងការបុរសល ហើយបុនាប់							
មកធ	រករបង់ទៅលើកមើតនឹមហោខាងកោមដោយ	gree a)		gree (8:)		ee ;:)		ee
រករារ	ទាល់តែនិតរបស់អក។	lisag ງບູຊື່ງ	ree Ivu	lisa§ បផ្ទៃក	ral (agr ផ្ទៃកន្ត	ee ປປ)	agr បខ្លាំង
Please below and to on easy	se take a short look at the questions w related to the Perceived Ease of Use , then CIRCLE the level of agreement ach of the items below base on your ion.	Strongly d មិនយល់ស្រ	Disag មិនយល់	Partially d (មិនយល់ស្រ	Neutı (ayr	Partially (យល់ស្រប	វាល់យ) រាgA	Strongly (យល់ស្រា
1	(PEOU1) E-payment is uncomplicated to use. ការទូទាត់តាមអ៊ីនធឺណិតគឺងាយស្រួលប្រើ។	ī	2	3	4	5	6	7
2	(PEOU2) E-payment is simple to use. ការទូទាត់តាមអ៊ីនធឺណិតគឺងាយស្រួលប្រើប្រាស់។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
3	(PEOU3) E-payment help me less face to face interaction. ការទូទាត់តាមអេឡិចត្រូនិកជួយខ្ញុំឱ្យប្រឈមនឹងការ ទាក់ទងដុយផ្ទាល់តិចជាំងមុន។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
4	(PEOU4) I think that using E-payment is effortless. ញុំគិតថាការប្រើអេឡិចគ្រូនិកទូទាត់ប្រាក់គឺមិនចាំបាច់ ទេ។		2	3	4	5	6	7
5	(PEOU5) E-payment make payment easier than before. ការទូទាត់តាមអេឡិចត្រូនិកធ្វើឱ្យការទូទាត់មានភាព ងាយស្រួលជាងមុន។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
6	(PEOU6) E-payment is rigid and flexible. ការទូទាត់តាមអេឡិចគ្រូនិកគឺតឹងរឹងនិងអាចបត់បែន បាន។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
7	(PEOU7) I would like use e-payment both occasional and regular payment. ខ្ញុំចង់ប្រើការទូទាត់តាមអេឡិចត្រូនិកទាំងការបង់ប្រាក់ ម្តងម្កាលនិងទៀងទាត់។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	(PEOU8) E-payment system is an easy mean of payment.	1	2	3	4	5	6	7

	ការទូទាត់តាមប្រព័ន្ធអេឡិចត្រូនិកគឺជាមធ្យោបាយ							
	ទ្ធទាត់ដែលងាយស្រួល។							
9	(PEOU9) Generally, I can use E- payment successfully every time. និយាយជារួមខ្ញុំអាចប្រើការទូទាត់តាមអេឡិចត្រនិក ដោយជោគជ័យបានគ្រប់ពេល។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Sect	ion 3 Attitude (ឥរិយាបថ)			Levels	of agre	ement		
			r	(កម្រិតនៃ	នការយល់	ស្រប)	r	
សូម	ពិនិត្យមើលសំណូរខាងក្រោមដែលពាក់ព័ន្ធទៅ							
នឹងឥ	រិយាបថ ហើយបន្ទាប់មកចូរគូររង្វង់ទៅលើ	ree a)		ree g:)		e 🛈		e e
កម្រិ	តនីមួយៗខាងក្រោមដោយផ្អែកទៅលើគំនិត	sag u gi	ee bu	sag Ìtan) al	agr.	e (U)	agre ខ្លាំង)
របស់	អ្នក។	y di Vib	agr	y di Uvu	utr: មេតា	lly : បបព្រ	gre V[h	gly រ ស្រប
Plea	se take a short look at the questions	ngl រយព	Dis មិនប	tiall យល់	Ce Ne	rtia Niu	A Muf	ron របប់
belo	w related to the Attitude , and then	Stro (B:	÷	Pari (BsI		Pa (tu		Stı (t
the i	tems below base on your opinion.							
1	(ATT1) It is intelligent using e-payment.	1/	2	2	4	5	6	7
•	វាជាការឆ្លាតវៃដោយប្រើការទូទាត់តាមអ៊ីនធឺណិត។	<u> </u>	2	3	4	5	U	Ι
	(ATT2) It gives a lot of benefit when use		1					
2	e-payment. វាផល់នូវអត្ថប្រយោជន៍ជាច្រើននៅពេលដែលប្រើអេ	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
	ទចៃពេនិកទទាត់បោក់។		1	nn	11.4			
	(ATT3) I like using system of e-			31				
3	payment.	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
	ខ្ញុំចូលចិត្តប្រើការទូទាត់តាមប្រព័ន្ធអេឡិចត្រូនិក។		1		11			
	(ATT4) I have positive thinking toward		(Sa)	0	6			
4	e-payment.	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
_	ខ្លួមនៃគន់ពរដ្ឋមានចំណាំំពារទូទាពពាមប្រពន្ធំអេឡាច ក្រចិត។				-	-	Ū	-
	(ATT5) E-navment system is annealing	-						
5		1	2	2	4	5	6	7
3	ការទូទាតតាមប្រពន្ធរងឡូចត្រូនកកពុជតេងពារនារឲ្យ ដី។	1	2	3	4	3	0	1
	(ATT6) E navment system is wonderful							
((ATTO) E-payment system is wonderful.	1		2		_	(-
6	ប្រពន្ធទូទាតតាមប្រពន្ធអេឡុចត្រូនកគអស្វាវ្យណា 	I	2	3	4	5	0	7
	(ATT/) E-payment is welcome idea to replace traditional payment							
7	ការជំនួសឲ្យការទូទាត់តាមបែបប្រពៃណីជាមួយនឹង	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
	ការទូទាត់តាមអ៊ីនធឺណិតគឺជាគំនិតថ្មីមួយ។							
	(ATT8) Overall, I like to use e-payment.							
8	្ត្រី និយាយជារួមខំចូលចិតបើការទទាត់តាមអេទាំចតេនិ	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Ŭ	ារ - ទុទ្ធ កាល ទេ	-		-			-	-

Section 4. Electronic Word of Mouth (ការ និយាយតគ្នាតាមប្រព័ន្ធអ៊ីនធឺណិត)			Levels of agreement (កម្រិតនៃការយល់ស្រប)							
សូមរំ និយា រង្វង់រេ គំនិត Plea belo Mou agre on y	ានិត្យមើលសំណូរខាងក្រោមដែលពាក់ព័ន្ធទៅនឹងការ យតគ្នាតាមប្រព័ន្ធអ៊ីនធឺណិត ហើយបន្ទាប់មកចូរគួរ ទាលើកម្រិតនីមួយៗខាងក្រោមដោយផ្អែកទៅលើ របស់អ្នក។ se take a short look at the questions w related to the Electronic Word of ath, and then CIRCLE the level of eement on each of the items below base your opinion.	Strongly disagree (មិនយល់ស្របខ្លាំង)	Disagree (មិនយល់ស្រប)	Partially disagree (មិនយល់ស្របផ្ទែកខ្លះ)	Neutral (ធម្មពា)	Partially agree (យល់ស្របផ្ទៃកខ្លះ)	Agree (យល់ស្រប)	Strongly agree (យល់ស្របខ្លាំង)		
1	(EWM1) I'm willing to considerate the information that I accepted. ខ្ញុំមានឆន្វ:ព័ត៌មានដែលខ្ញុំទទួលយកមកធ្វើការពិចារ ណា។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
2	(EWM2) I'm Willing to share the information to my friend that suggestion of information is good for me. ខ្ញុំមានឆន្ធ:ក្នុងការចែករំលែកព័ត៌មានទៅមិត្តរបស់ខ្ញុំថា ការផ្តល់យោបល់ពីព័ត៌មានគឺល្អសម្រាប់ខ្ញុំ។	2	2	3	4	5	6	7		
3	(EWM3) I can received the large potential of the information of a big Online-channel community. ខ្ញុំអាចទទួលបានសក្តានុពលដ៍ធំនៃព័ត៌មានរបស់សហ គមន៍តាមបណ្តាញអ៊ីនធឺណេត។	P	2	3	4	5	6	7		
4	(EWM4) I'm willing to accept diverse information regarding to the different online-channel. ខ្ញុំមានឆន្ធ:ក្នុងការទទួលយកព័ត៌មានផ្សេងៗទាក់ទង នឹងបណ្តាញអ៊ីនធឺណិតផ្សេងៗគ្នា។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
5	(EWM5) I'm willing to receive different kind of information and review from different online-platform. ខ្ញុំមានឆន្ធ:ទទួលបានព័ត៌មានប្រភេទផ្សេងៗគ្នានិងការ ត្រួតពិនិត្យឡើងវិញតាមអ៊ិនធឺណិតផ្សេងៗ។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		

Sect	ion 5. Subjective Norm (បទដ្ឋានសង្គម)	Levels of agreement (កម្រិតនៃការយល់សេប)						
ស្វមពិ បទដ្ឋា នីម្វយ Plea belo then each opin	និត្យមើលសំណូរខាងក្រោមដែលពាក់ព័ន្ធទៅនឹង នេសង្គម ហើយបន្ទាប់មកចូរគូររង្វង់ទៅលើកម្រិត រូបខាងក្រោមដោយផ្អែកទៅលើគំនិតរបស់អ្នក។ se take a short look at the questions w related to the Subjective Norm , and CIRCLE the level of agreement on of the items below base on your ion.	Strongly disagree (មិនយល់ស្របខ្លាំង)	Disagree (មិនយល់ស្រប)	Partially disagree ម៉េនយល់ស្របផ្នែកខ្លះ)	Neutral (ធម្មតា)	Partially agree (យល់ស្របផ្ទៃកខ្លះ)	Agree (យល់ស្រប)	Strongly agree (យល់ស្របខ្លាំង)
1	(SN1) My friends are essential to me to make a focus on using e-payment. មិត្តភក្តិរបស់ខ្ញុំគឺចាំបាច់សម្រាប់ខ្ញុំក្នុងការផ្តោត អារម្មណ៍លើការប្រើប្រាស់អេឡិចត្រូនិកក្នុងទូទាត់ប្រា ក់។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
2	(SN2) My friends are thinking that using e-payment is good. មិត្តភក្តិរបស់ខ្ញុំកំពុងគិតថាការប្រើប្រាស់អេឡិចក្រូនិច គឺល្អ។		2	3	4	5	6	7
3	(SN3) My friends often share e-payment information to me. មិត្តភក្តិរបស់ខ្ញុំតែងតែចែករំលែកព័ត៌មានទូទាត់តាមអេ ទ្បិចត្រូនិកមកខ្ញុំ។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
4	(SN4) My friends start to use e-payment too. មិត្តភក្តិរបស់ខ្ញុំក៍ចាប់ផ្តើមប្រើសេវាអេឡិចត្រូនិកដែរ។		2	3	4	5	6	7
5	(SN5) My friends who influence me would think that I should use e-payment. មិត្តភក្តិដែលស្និតស្នាលខ្ញុំគិតថាខ្ញុំគូរតែប្រើការទូទាត់ តាមអេឡិចត្រូនិក។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
6	(SN6) My friends whose ideas are important to me would like that I should use e-payment. មិត្តភក្តិរបស់ខ្ញុំដែលផ្តល់គំនិតមានតម្លៃថាខ្ញុំគូរតែប្រើ ការទូទាត់តាមអេឡិចគ្រូនិក។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7

7	(SN7) Overall, my friends are closed to me to support my using of e- payment. សរុបមកមិត្តភក្តិខ្ញុំមានសារ:សំខាន់ចំពោះខ្ញុំក្នុងការគាំ ទ្រដល់ការប្រើប្រាស់ការទូទាត់តាមអ៊ីនធឺណិតរបស់ខ្ ញុំ។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Secti	ion 6. Financial Risk (ហានិភ័យផ្នែកហិរញ្ញ			Levels (កម្រិតនៃ	of agre កោរយល់	ement ស្រប)		
ំ ^{កុ} សមេពិ	និតអើលសំណរខាងកោមដែលពាក់ព័នទៅនឹង(ហា							
និភ័យ	ផែកហិរពាវត ហើយបនាប់មកចរគររងង់ទៅលើ							
កម្រិត *។	រដ្ឋលេកឆ្លាំនុ ខេះយិទទួលខេះទូរទូរកូរទូរកូរទៀង នីមួយៗខាងក្រោមដោយផ្អែកទៅលើគំនិតរបស់អ្ន	sagree បខ្លាំង)	ee VU)	sagree ផ្ទៃកខ្លះ)	le (agree ing:)	с (Д	រgree ខ្លាំង)
Pleas	se take a short look at the questions	gly di លំស្រ	isagr ឃល់ប្រ	lly di Մ(ԽՄ	leutr: ធម្មតា	ally ៖ ស្របព្វំ	Agree ហៀហ	ngly រ បំស្រប
below then each	w related to the Financial Risk , and CIRCLE the level of agreement on of the items below base on your	Strong (មិនយ	D (BB	Partia (មិនយរ	2 -	Parti (យល់	(n)	Stroi (mr
opin	ION. (FCR1) I worry when I transfer money		1					
1	(FCRT) T worry when T transfer money through the internet, I am afraid that I may lose my money. ខ្ញុំបារម្ភនៅពេលផ្ទេះប្រាក់តាមអ៊ីនធឺណិតខ្ញុំខ្លាចថាខ្ញុំ នឹងបាត់បង់លុយរបស់ខ្ញុំ។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
2	(FCR2) I worry about mistakes of careless such as put a wrong account number and put wrong the amount of my money. ខ្ញុំបារម្ភអំពីកំហុសដែលធ្វេសប្រហែស ដូចជាការ បញ្ចូលលេខគណនីខុសនិងការបញ្ចូលចំនួនទឹកប្រាក់ របស់ខ្ញុំខុស។		2	3	4	5	6	7
3	(FCR3) I worry that I cannot get compensation when transaction errors happened. ខ្ញុំបារម្ភថានៅពេលមានកំហុសប្រតិបត្តិការខ្ញុំមិនអាច ទទួលបានសំណងមកវិញ។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Sect	ion 7 Privacy Risk (ហានិភ័យភាពឯកជន)			Levels (កម្រិតនៃ	of agre កោរយល់	ement ស្រប)		
សូមពិនិត្យមើលសំណួរខាងក្រោមដែលពាក់ព័ន្ធទៅនឹង(ហា និក័យភាពឯកជន ហើយបន្ទាប់មកចូរគួររង្វង់ទៅលើកម្រិត នីមួយៗខាងក្រោមដោយផ្អែកទៅលើគំនិតរបស់អ្នក។ Please take a short look at the questions below related to the Privacy Risk , and then CIRCLE the level of agreement on each of the items below base on your opinion.		Strongly disagree (មិនយល់ស្របខ្លាំង)	Disagree (មិនយល់ស្រប)	Partially disagree (មិនយល់ស្របផ្នៃពន្លះ)	Neutral (ធម្មពា)	Partially agree (យល់ស្របផ្នៃកខ្លះ)	Agree (យល់ស្រប)	Strongly agree (យល់ស្របខ្លាំង)

1	(PVR1) I think E-payment provider would not send my personal information to the third party. ខ្ញុំគិតថាអ្នកផ្តល់សេវាទូទាត់ប្រាក់តាមអេឡិចត្រូនិក នឹងមិនធ្ញើព័ត៌មានផ្ទាល់ខ្លួនរបស់ខ្ញុំទៅភាគីទីបីទេ។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
2	(PVR2) I'm afraid that other people may be able to access my account when I'm using E-payment. ខ្ញុំមានការព្រួយបារម្ភក្នុងការប្រើការទូទាត់តាមអ៊ីធឺណិ តពីព្រោះមនុស្សផ្សេងទៀតអាចចូលប្រើគណនីរបស់ ខ្ញុំ។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
3	(PVR3) I feel not totally safe to provide my privacy personal information over the internet paying. ខ្ញុំនឹងមិនមានអារម្មណ៍ថាមានសុវត្ថិភាពទាំងស្រុងក្នុង ការផ្តល់ព័ត៌មានឯកជនភាពតាមរយ:ការបង់ប្រាក់តាម អ៊ីនធឺណិតទេ។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
4	(PVR4) I think the application may not let me fell bored with accessing the E- payment. ខ្ញុំគិតថាពាក្យស្នើសុំប្រហែលជាមិនធ្វើឱ្យខ្ញុំធុញទ្រាន់ នឹងការចូលប្រើការទូទាត់ប្រាក់តាមអ៊ីធឺណិតទេ។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
Sect ming	ion 8. Behavioral Intention (បំណងក្នុង ទី)	Levels of agreement (កម្រិតនៃការយល់ស្រប)								
សូមពិ និភ័យ នីមួយ Plea: belo CIR the it	និត្យមើលសំណូរខាងក្រោមដែលពាក់ព័ន្ធទៅនឹង(ហា ភោពឯកជន ហើយបន្ទាប់មកចូរគូររង្វង់ទៅលើកម្រិត ខាខាងក្រោមដោយផ្អែកទៅលើគំនិតរបស់អ្នក។ se take a short look at the questions w related to the Privacy Risk , and then CLE the level of agreement on each of tems below base on your opinion.	 J. u. s J. u. s Strongly disagree (មិនយល់ស្របខ្លាំង) Disagree (មិនយល់ស្របផ្នុកខ្លះ) Neutral (មិនយល់ស្របផ្ទុកខ្លះ) Partially agree (យល់ស្រប) Strongly agree (mointeningia) 					Strongly agree (យល់ស្របន្តាំង)			
1	(BI1) I would like to use E- payment. ខ្ញុំចង់ប្រើការទូទាត់តាមអ៊ីនធឺណិត។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
2	(BI2) I would like to recommend the importance of E-payment. ខ្ញុំសូមណែនាំពីសារ:សំខាន់នៃការទូទាត់តាមប្រព័ន្ធអេ ទ្បិចត្រូនិក។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
3	(BI3) I am planning to continue to use E- payment. ខ្ញុំមានគម្រោងបន្តការប្រើប្រាស់សេវាទូទាត់តាមអ៊ីនធឺ ណិត។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
4	(BI4) I would like to use E-payment when purchasing something. ខ្ញុំចង់ប្រើការទូទាត់តាមប្រព័ន្ធអេទ្យិចត្រនិកនៅពេល	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		

5	(BI5) Using the E-payment for handling my paying transactions is something I would do. ការប្រើប្រាស់ការទូទាត់ប្រាក់តាមប្រព័ន្ធអេឡិចត្រនិក សម្រាប់ដោះស្រាយប្រតិបត្តិការបង់ប្រាក់របស់ខ្ញុំគឺជា អ្វីដែលខ្ញុំត្រូវធ្វើ។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
6	(BI6) I hope that the use of e-payment for my payment would be continue. ខ្ញុំរំពឹងថាការប្រើប្រាស់ការទូទាត់តាមអេឡិចក្រូនិក សម្រាប់ការទូទាត់របស់ខ្ញុំគួរតែបន្ត។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
7	(BI7) I would recommend for e-payment system because it is convenient. ខ្ញុំនឹងគាំទ្រប្រព័ន្ធទូទាត់តាមប្រព័ន្ធអេឡិចត្រូនិកព្រោះ វាងាយស្រួល។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	(BI8) No matter what, I will support continued usage of e-payment system. ទោះបីជាមានបញ្ហាអ្វីក៏ដោយខ្ញុំនឹងគាំទ្រការប្រើប្រាស់ ប្រព័ន្ធទូទាត់តាមប្រព័ន្ធអេឡិចគ្រូនិកបន្ត។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
9	(BI9) I plan on using the e-payment system on a regular basis in the future. ខ្ញុំមានគម្រោងប្រើប្រាស់ប្រព័ន្ធទូទាត់តាមប្រព័ន្ធអេ ឡិចត្រូនិកជាប្រចាំនាពេលអនាគត។	1	2	3	4	5	6	7

Source: Original Study

Respondent Information

ព័តមានរបស់អ្នកឆ្លើយសំនូរ

For our information, please fill the following questions below: សម្រាប់ជាព័ត៌មានសូមឆ្លើយសំនូរខាងក្រោម

```
1. Gender
9. ភេិទ
              □ Female
\square Male
              🗆 ស្រី
🗆 ប្រស
2. Age
២. អាយុ
\square 20-30 years old
                             \square 31-40 years old
\Box 41-50 years old
                             \square >50 years old
                                                                  🗆 >៥០ ឆ្នាំ
🗆 ២០-៣០ ឆ្នាំ
                      🗆 ៣១-៤០ ឆ្នាំ
                                            🗆 ៤១-៥០ ឆ្នាំ
3. Educational Level
៣. កម្រិតការអប់រំ
                                            \square Ph.D.
□ Bachelor
                      □ Master
                                            🗆 បណ្ឌិត
🗆 បរិញ្ញាបត្រ
                      🗆 អនុបណ្ឌិត
4. Incomes Level
៤. កំរិតប្រាក់ចំណូល
\square $200-$300/per month \square $310-$400/per month \square $410-$500/per month
\square $510-$600/per month \square >$610/per month.
□ $២០០-$៣០០/ខែ
                      □ $m90-$€00/€2
                                            □ $៤១០-$៥០០/ខែ
                                                                  □ $៥១០-$៦០០/ខែ
□ >$៦១០/ខែ
5. The frequency of using the internet
៥. ភាពញឹកញាប់នៃការប្រើអ៊ិនធឺណិត
\Box < 1 hour/day
                      \Box 1 to 2 hours/day \Box 2 to 3 hours/day
\square >3 hours/day
🗆 តិចជាង ១ ម៉ោង / ថ្ងៃ 🗆 ១ ទៅ ២ ម៉ោង / ថ្ងៃ 👘 ២ ទៅ ៣ ម៉ោង / ថ្ងៃ
🗆 ច្រើនជាង ៣ ម៉ោង/ ថ្ងៃ
```